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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q
 QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended December 31, 2011
OR



TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the Transition Period from

to

Commission File Number: 1-9764

Harman International Industries, Incorporated
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware

11-2534306

(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)

400 Atlantic Street, Suite 1500
Stamford, CT

06901

(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

(203) 328-3500
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. 
Yes 
No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). 
Yes 
No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.
(Check one):
Large accelerated filer 
Non-accelerated filer



(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Accelerated filer



Smaller reporting company



Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).



Yes



No

As of January 31, 2012, 70,186,288 shares of common stock, par value $0.01, were outstanding.
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Forward-Looking Statements
This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. You should not place undue reliance on these statements. Forward-looking statements
include information concerning possible or assumed future results of operations, cash flows, capital expenditures, the outcome of pending legal
proceedings and claims, goals and objectives for future operations, including descriptions of our business strategies and purchase commitments
from customers. These statements are typically identified by words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “plan,” “intend,” “estimate,”
“should,” “will” and similar expressions. We base these statements on particular assumptions that we have made in light of our industry
experience, as well as our perception of historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other factors that we believe are
appropriate under the circumstances. As you read and consider the information in this report, you should understand that these statements are not
guarantees of performance or results. They involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. In light of these risks and uncertainties, we cannot
assure you that the results and events contemplated by the forward-looking statements contained in, or incorporated by reference into, this report
will in fact transpire.
You should carefully consider the risks described below and the other information in this report because they identify important factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those predicted in any such forward-looking statements. Our operating results may fluctuate
significantly and may not meet our expectations or those of securities analysts or investors. The price of our stock would likely decline if this
occurs. Factors that may cause fluctuations in our operating results include, but are not limited to, the following:
•

our ability to maintain profitability in our infotainment division if there are delays in our product launches which may give rise to
significant penalties and increased engineering expense;

•

the loss of one or more significant customers, or the loss of a significant platform with an automotive customer;

•

warranty obligations for defects in our products;

•

fluctuations in currency exchange rates, particularly with respect to the value of the U.S. Dollar and the Euro;

•

our ability to successfully implement our global footprint initiative, including achieving cost reductions and other benefits in
connection with the restructuring of our manufacturing, engineering, procurement and administrative organizations;

•

fluctuations in the price and supply of raw materials including, without limitation, petroleum, copper, steel, aluminum, synthetic
resins, rare metals and rare-earth minerals, or shortages of materials, parts and components;

•

the inability of our suppliers to deliver products at the scheduled rate and disruptions arising in connection therewith;

•

our ability to attract and retain qualified senior management and to prepare and implement an appropriate succession plan for our
critical organizational positions;

•

our failure to implement and maintain a comprehensive disaster recovery program;

•

our failure to comply with governmental rules and regulations, including the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and U.S. export control
laws, and the cost of complying with such laws;

•

our ability to maintain a competitive technological advantage through innovation and leading product designs;

•

our failure to maintain the value of our brands and implementing a sufficient brand protection program;

•

the outcome of pending or future litigation and other claims, including, but not limited to, the current stockholder and Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 lawsuits; and

•

our ability to enforce or defend our ownership and use of intellectual property rights.

Although we believe that these forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, you should be aware that many factors could
affect our actual results of operations and could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements.
As a result, the foregoing factors should not be construed as exhaustive, and should be read together with the other cautionary statements
included in this and other reports we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission including the information in Item 1A, under the caption
“Risk Factors” of Part I to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. We undertake no obligation to publicly
update or revise any forward-looking statement (except as required by law). This report also makes reference to our awarded business, which
represents the estimated future lifetime net sales for all customers. Our future awarded business does not represent firm customer orders. We
calculate our awarded business using various assumptions including global vehicle production forecasts, customer take rates for our products,
revisions to product life cycle estimates and the impact of annual price reductions, among other factors. These assumptions are updated on an
annual basis. We update our estimates quarterly by adding the value of new awards received and subtracting sales recorded during the quarter.
i
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1.

Financial Statements
HARMAN INTERNATIONAL INDUSTRIES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)
December 31,
2011

(In thousands)

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Receivables, net
Inventories, net
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Deferred tax assets, long-term
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Short-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued warranties
Income taxes payable
Total current liabilities
Convertible senior notes
Pension liability
Other non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Preferred stock
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Retained earnings
Less: Common stock held in treasury
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

$

544,803
223,836
634,354
493,690
221,838
2,118,521
432,915
184,928
205,456
145,181
$ 3,087,001

$

$

$

387,160
219
485,612
377,792
113,236
11,155
1,375,174
0
140,620
102,042
1,617,836
—
0
958
923,036
77,517
1,515,224
(1,047,570)
1,469,165
$ 3,087,001

See accompanying Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
1

June 30, 2011

603,892
317,322
579,272
423,137
184,532
2,108,155
470,300
119,357
229,941
130,742
$ 3,058,495

386
1,785
473,486
436,537
122,396
12,991
1,047,581
378,401
142,136
66,719
1,634,837
—
0
956
915,433
136,733
1,418,106
(1,047,570)
1,423,658
$ 3,058,495
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HARMAN INTERNATIONAL INDUSTRIES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

(In thousands, except earnings per share data)

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Sale of intellectual property
Operating income

$1,127,029
821,490
305,539
210,174
(13)
95,378

Other expenses:
Interest expense, net
Foreign exchange losses, net
Miscellaneous, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense, net
Net income

$

4,059
7,373
1,955
81,991
22,736
59,255

Earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted

$
$

0.83
0.82

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

71,463
72,299

$956,081
687,341
268,740
200,921
0
67,819

$2,177,632
1,584,451
593,181
423,926
(301)
169,556

5,764
523
1,882
59,650
6,598
$ 53,052

9,335
11,597
3,399
145,225
37,603
$ 107,622

$

11,910
625
3,307
94,723
14,283
80,440

$
$

$
$

$
$

1.14
1.13

0.75
0.74
70,972
71,629

See accompanying Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
2

Six Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

1.51
1.49
71,265
72,085

$1,793,027
1,299,716
493,311
382,746
0
110,565

70,818
71,364
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HARMAN INTERNATIONAL INDUSTRIES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities, net of acquired businesses:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Loss on disposition of assets
Share-based compensation
Non-cash interest expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquired businesses:
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables, net
Inventories, net
Other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued warranties
Accrued other liabilities
Income taxes payable
Other operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of short-term investments
Maturities of short-term investments
Acquisitions, net of cash received
Proceeds from asset dispositions
Capital expenditures
Other items, net
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net decrease in short-term borrowings
Debt issuance costs for revolving credit facility
Other (decrease) increase in long-term debt
Dividends to shareholders
Net proceeds (used in) provided by share-based compensation
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Non-Cash Investing Activities:
Accrued and contingent acquisition-related liabilities
See accompanying Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
3

$ 107,622

$ 80,440

60,192
53,923
851
7,921
9,703

58,586
6,038
272
9,331
10,127

(93,782)
(97,241)
(59,531)

37,227
(53,636)
(5,200)

35,877
(9,160)
19,569
(556)
(14,575)
20,813

(29,628)
6,483
(30,395)
5,228
(4,244)
90,629

(302,181)
395,667
(70,535)
2,255
(52,945)
640
(27,099)

(327,984)
80,832
(1,770)
2,840
(34,578)
1,865
(278,795)

(1,346)
0
(9,268)
(10,504)
(26)
(21,144)
(31,659)
(59,089)
603,892
$ 544,803

(12,952)
(7,003)
3,247
0
2,332
(14,376)
41,252
(161,290)
645,570
$ 484,280

$
$

1,428
6,015

$
$

3,194
2,967

$ 28,017

$

1,693
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HARMAN INTERNATIONAL INDUSTRIES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands, except per-share data and where otherwise noted)
(Unaudited)
Note 1 – Basis of Presentation
Basis of Presentation
References to “we,” “us,” “our,” “our company” and “Harman” refer to Harman International Industries, Incorporated and its consolidated
subsidiaries unless the context specifically requires otherwise.
Our unaudited, condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting policies described in our audited consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011 (our “2011 Annual Report”) and do not include all information and footnote disclosures included in our audited financial
statements. In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited, condensed consolidated financial statements include all adjustments,
consisting of normal recurring adjustments and accruals, necessary to present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented. Operating results for the three and six months ended December 31, 2011 are not
necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 due to seasonal, economic and other
factors. Where necessary, information for prior periods has been reclassified to conform to the consolidated financial statement presentation in
the current fiscal year. These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes included in our 2011 Annual Report.
Effective July 1, 2011, we revised our business segments in order to better align them with our strategic approach to the markets and customers
we serve. Refer to Note 17 – Business Segment Data for further information. Prior period segment amounts throughout the Notes to the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been reclassified to the new segment structure. The reclassification of historical business
segment information had no impact on our basic financial statements.
The methods, estimates and judgments we use in applying our accounting policies, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States (“GAAP”), have a significant impact on the results we report in our financial statements. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates affect the carrying values
of assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
Effective July 1, 2011, we changed the functional currency of two our foreign subsidiaries to the U.S. Dollar to reflect a change in the currency
such subsidiaries primarily generate and expend cash.
Note 2 – New Accounting Standards
Recently Adopted Accounting Standards
Goodwill Impairment Testing: In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) 2011-08 , “Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing Goodwill for Impairment” (“ASU 2011-08”). The new guidance is
intended to simplify how entities test goodwill for impairment. It includes provisions that permit an entity to first assess qualitative factors in
determining whether it is “more likely than not” that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining
whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test. The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as having a likelihood of
more than 50 percent. The new guidance is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2011. Early adoption is permitted. We adopted the provisions of this new guidance in September 2011. The adoption of the new
provisions did not have any impact on our financial condition or results of operations.
Intangibles, Goodwill and Other: In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-28, “Intangibles – Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): When
to Perform Step 2 of the Goodwill Impairment Test for Reporting Units with Zero or Negative Carrying Amounts.” The new guidance requires
that reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts perform Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test if it is more likely than not that a
goodwill impairment exists. The new guidance is effective for us for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010. We adopted the provisions
of this new guidance on July 1, 2011. The adoption of the new provisions did not have any impact on our financial condition or results of
operations, as we had no reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts.
Business Combinations: In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-29, “Business Combinations (Topic 805): Disclosure of
Supplementary Pro Forma Information for Business Combinations.” The new guidance specifies that when comparative financial statements are
presented, the revenue and earnings of the combined entity should be disclosed as though the business combination that
4
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occurred during the current year had occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only. The new guidance
applies prospectively to us for business combinations which occur on or after July 1, 2011. We adopted the new provisions on July 1, 2011. The
impact of these new provisions on our consolidated financial statements will depend upon the nature, terms and size of the acquisitions we
consummate in the future.
Recently Issued Accounting Standards
Balance Sheet: In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11, “Balance Sheet (Topic 210), Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and
Liabilities,” which requires companies to disclose information about financial instruments that have been offset and related arrangements to
enable users of its financial statements to understand the effect of those arrangements on its financial condition. Companies will be required to
provide both net (offset amounts) and gross information in the notes to the financial statements for relevant assets and liabilities that are offset.
The new guidance is effective retrospectively for fiscal years and interim periods with those fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
We will adopt the provisions of this new guidance on July 1, 2013. We do not expect the adoption of the new provisions to have a material
impact on our financial condition or results of operations.
Fair Value: In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, “Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Achieve Common Fair
Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs.” The new guidance does not extend the use of fair value
accounting, but provides guidance on how to apply fair value accounting, where its use is already required, or permitted by other standards
within GAAP or International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”). The new guidance also changes the wording used to describe many
requirements in GAAP for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value measurements and it clarifies the FASB’s intent
about the application of existing fair value measurements. The new guidance applies prospectively and is effective for interim and annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2011. We will adopt the provisions of this new guidance on January 1, 2012. We do not expect the adoption of the
new provisions to have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.
Comprehensive Income: In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive
Income” (“ASU 2011-05”). The new guidance requires that all non-owner changes in stockholders’ equity be presented either in a single
continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. In both cases, an entity is required to present each
component of net income along with total net income, each component of other comprehensive income along with a total for other
comprehensive income, and a total amount for comprehensive income. If presented in a single continuous statement, the entity is required to
present the components of net income and total net income, the components of other comprehensive income and a total for other comprehensive
income, along with the total of comprehensive income in that statement. If presented in the two-statement approach, the first statement which is
the statement of net income, should present components of net income and total net income followed consecutively by a second statement which
is the statement of other comprehensive income, that should present the components of other comprehensive income, total other comprehensive
income and a total amount for comprehensive income. Regardless of the method used, the entity is required to present on the face of the financial
statements reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified from other comprehensive income to net income in the statement where the
components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income are presented. In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 201112 “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05” (“ASU 2011-12”). ASU 2011-12 temporarily
deferred the requirement to present on the face of the financial statements reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified from other
comprehensive income to net income in the statement where the components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income
are presented. The guidance in ASU 2011-05, as amended, is effective retrospectively for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2011. We will adopt the provisions of this new guidance on July 1, 2012. We do not expect the adoption of
the new provisions to have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.
Note 3 – Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
We reserve an estimated amount for accounts receivable that may not be collected. Methodologies for estimating the allowance for doubtful
accounts are based primarily on specific identification of uncollectible accounts. Historical collection rates and customer credit worthiness are
considered in determining specific reserves. At December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, we had $5.6 million and $7.0 million, respectively,
reserved for possible uncollectible accounts receivable.
5
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Note 4 – Inventories, net
Inventories, net consist of the following:
December 31,

Finished goods
Work in process
Raw materials
Inventories, net

2011

June 30,
2011

$ 192,864
70,220
230,606
$ 493,690

$153,469
67,534
202,134
$423,137

At December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, our inventory reserves were $68.8 million and $73.3 million, respectively.
Note 5 – Property, Plant and Equipment, net
Property, plant and equipment, net consist of the following:

Land
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Property, plant and equipment, gross
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property, plant and equipment, net

Estimated
Useful Lives

December 31,

(in Years)

2011

June 30,
2011

$
1-50
3-20
3-10

8,887
264,103
1,018,340
29,952
1,321,282
(888,367)
$ 432,915

$

11,974
280,053
1,050,892
30,769
1,373,688
(903,388)
$ 470,300

Depreciation expense for the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $25.6 million and $28.5 million, respectively, and was $54.2
million and $54.9 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Note 6 – Accrued Warranties
We warrant our products to be free from defects in materials and workmanship for periods ranging from six months to six years from the date of
purchase, depending on the business segment and product. Our dealers and warranty service providers normally perform warranty service in
field locations and regional service centers, using parts and replacement finished goods we supply on an exchange basis. Our dealers and
warranty service providers also install updates we provide to correct defects covered by our warranties. Estimated warranty liabilities are based
upon past experience with similar types of products, the technological complexity of certain products, replacement cost and other factors. If
estimates of warranty provisions are no longer adequate based on our analysis of current activity, incremental provisions are recorded as
warranty expense in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income. We take these factors into consideration when assessing the adequacy
of our warranty provision for periods still open to claim.
Details of our accrued warranties are as follows:
Six Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

Accrued warranties, June 30
Warranty expense
Warranty payments (cash or in-kind)
Other (1)
Accrued warranties, December 31
(1)

$122,396
28,437
(25,033)
(12,564)
$113,236

Other primarily represents foreign currency translation.
6

$ 99,329
24,846
(26,515)
8,152
$105,812
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Note 7 – Earnings Per Share
We apply the two-class method when computing earnings per share, which requires that net income per share for each class of shares entitled to
dividends be calculated assuming all of our net income is distributed as dividends to these shareholders based on their contractual rights.
The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share of common stock outstanding:
Three Months Ended December 31,
2011
2010
Diluted
Basic

Basic

Numerator for Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share:
Net income
Denominator for Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share:
Weighted average shares outstanding
Employee stock options
Total weighted average shares outstanding
Earnings per Share:
Earnings per share

$ 59,255

$ 59,255

$ 53,052

$ 53,052

71,463
0
71,463

71,463
836
72,299

70,972
0
70,972

70,972
657
71,629

$

0.83

Basic

Numerator for Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share:
Net income
Denominator for Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share:
Weighted average shares outstanding
Employee stock options
Total weighted average shares outstanding
Earnings per Share:
Earnings per share

Diluted

$

0.82

$

0.75

$

Six Months Ended December 31,
2011
2010
Diluted
Basic

0.74

Diluted

$ 107,622

$ 107,622

$ 80,440

$ 80,440

71,265
0
71,265

71,265
820
72,085

70,818
0
70,818

70,818
546
71,364

$

1.51

$

1.49

$

1.14

$

1.13

Options to purchase 1,767,021 and 1,752,421 shares of our common stock were outstanding for the three months ended December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively, and excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because they would have been antidilutive. In addition,
restricted shares and restricted stock units of 8,274 and 18,404 were outstanding for the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, and were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share as they also would have been antidilutive.
Options to purchase 1,699,565 and 1,702,404 shares of our common stock were outstanding for the six months ended December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively, and excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because they would have been antidilutive. In addition,
restricted shares and restricted stock units of 4,341 and 13,733 were outstanding during the six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, and were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share as they also would have been antidilutive.
The conversion terms of our $400 million of 1.25 percent convertible senior notes due October 15, 2012 (the “Convertible Senior Notes”) will
affect the calculation of diluted earnings per share if the price of our common stock exceeds the conversion price of the Convertible Senior
Notes. The initial conversion price of the Convertible Senior Notes was approximately $104 per share, subject to adjustment in specified
circumstances as described in the indenture governing the Convertible Senior Notes (the “Indenture”). Upon conversion, a holder of the
Convertible Senior Notes will receive an amount per Convertible Senior Note in cash equal to the lesser of $1,000 or the conversion value of the
Convertible Senior Notes, determined in the manner set forth in the Indenture. If the conversion value exceeds $1,000, we will deliver $1,000 in
cash and, at our option, cash or common stock or a combination of cash and common stock for the conversion price in excess of $1,000. The
conversion option is indexed to our common stock and therefore is classified as equity. The conversion option will not result in an adjustment to
net income in calculating diluted earnings per share. The dilutive effect of the conversion option will be calculated using the treasury stock
method. Therefore, conversion settlement shares will be included in diluted shares outstanding if the price of our common stock exceeds the
conversion price of the Convertible Senior Notes.
7
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The Convertible Senior Notes had no effect on the computation of diluted earnings per share for the three and six months ended December 31,
2011 and 2010. Refer to Note 9 – Debt for further information.
Note 8 – Goodwill
In September 2011, we adopted ASU 2011-08, under which an entity may first assess qualitative factors in determining whether it is “more
likely than not” that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform
the two-step goodwill impairment test. Adoption of this guidance had no impact on our financial condition or results of operations as no events
came to our attention indicating that the fair values of our reporting units might be less than their carrying values. Refer to Note 2 – New
Accounting Standards for further information.
We test for impairment at the reporting unit level on an annual basis as of April 30 th of every year and between annual tests if an event occurs or
circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its carrying value. The impairment test for
goodwill is a two-step process. The first step compares the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying value, with the fair value of each
reporting unit determined using established valuation techniques, specifically the market and income approaches. If the results of the first step
indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, then the second step of this test is conducted wherein the amount of
any impairment is determined by comparing the implied fair value of goodwill in a reporting unit to the recorded amount of goodwill for that
reporting unit. The implied fair value of goodwill is calculated as the excess of fair value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its
assets and liabilities. Should the fair value of the goodwill so calculated be less than the carrying value, an impairment is recognized. The annual
goodwill impairment tests conducted as of April 30, 2011 and April 30, 2010 indicated that the fair value of each reporting unit was substantially
in excess of its carrying value and, as such, no impairments were deemed to exist. We did not recognize any impairment charges in our
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income in the three and six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.
During the three and six months ended December 31, 2011, we recorded $0 and $79.8 million, respectively, of goodwill in our Lifestyle
segment, associated with the acquisition of MWM Acoustics, LLC and certain related entities (“MWM Acoustics”). Refer to Note 20 –
Acquisition for more information.
Effective July 1, 2011, we revised our business segments in order to better align them with our strategic approach to the markets and customers
we serve. Under this new structure, our reportable segments consist of the Infotainment, Lifestyle, Professional and Other segments. Our
reporting units are the same as our reportable segments with the exception of our Lifestyle segment, which consists of two reporting units,
automotive audio and home audio. In connection with this realignment, we reallocated our goodwill to our new reporting units based on each
reporting unit’s relative fair value. We also performed a goodwill impairment test as of July 1, 2011 using our new reporting units and
determined that the fair value of each of our reporting units exceeded its carrying value, therefore, no impairments were deemed to exist as of
this date. Refer to Note 17 – Business Segment Data for more information.
Note 9 – Debt
Short Term Borrowings
At December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, we had $0.2 million and $1.8 million of short-term borrowings outstanding, respectively, and we
maintained lines of credit of $17.9 million and $20.8 million, in the aggregate, respectively, in Hungary, the U.S., Austria and Brazil.
Revolving Credit Facility
On December 1, 2010, Harman and Harman Holding GmbH & Co., KG, our wholly-owned subsidiary (“Harman KG”), entered into a MultiCurrency Credit Agreement with a group of banks, as amended on December 15, 2011 (the “Credit Agreement”). At December 31, 2011 and
June 30, 2011, we had no borrowings under the Credit Agreement and had outstanding letters of credit of $8.7 million and $7.3 million,
respectively. At December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, unused available credit under the Credit Agreement was $541.3 million and $542.7
million, respectively. If we experience a significant decline in our operating results, we could violate our debt covenants and, absent a waiver
from our lenders or an amendment to the Credit Agreement, we could be in default under the Credit Agreement. As a result, our debt under the
Credit Agreement could become due, which would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. A default
under the Credit Agreement could also lead to an event of default under the Indenture, as amended, and accelerate the maturity of the
Convertible Senior Notes. As of December 31, 2011, we were in compliance with all the financial covenants of the Credit Agreement. Debt
issuance costs of $7.0 million were recorded in connection with this transaction and are included in Other assets in our Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets and are also being amortized to Interest expense, net in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income over the expected
remaining term of the Credit Agreement.
8
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Guarantee and Collateral Agreement
In connection with the Credit Agreement, we and Harman KG entered into a guarantee and collateral agreement (the “Guarantee and Collateral
Agreement”), which provides, among other things, that the obligations under the Credit Agreement are guaranteed by us and each of the
subsidiary guarantors party thereto, and that the obligations generally are secured by liens on substantially all of our assets and certain of our
subsidiary guarantors’ assets.
The term of the Guarantee and Collateral Agreement corresponds with the term of the Credit Agreement, which matures on December 1,
2015. Under the terms of the Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, we have effectively guaranteed the payment of the full amount of borrowings
under the Credit Agreement, including outstanding letters of credit, upon maturity. The potential amount of future payments that we would be
required to pay under the Guarantee and Collateral Agreement is the amount that we have borrowed under the Credit Agreement, including
outstanding letters of credit. At December 31, 2011, and June 30, 2011 we had no borrowings under the Credit Agreement and had outstanding
letters of credit of $8.7 million and $7.3 million, respectively.
Convertible Senior Notes
We had $400 million of Convertible Senior Notes outstanding at December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, which were issued on October 23, 2007
(the “Issuance Date”) and are due on October 15, 2012. The Convertible Senior Notes were issued at par and we pay interest at a rate of 1.25
percent per annum on a semiannual basis. The initial conversion rate on the Convertible Senior Notes is 9.6154 shares of our common stock per
$1,000 principal amount of the Convertible Senior Notes (which is equal to an initial conversion price of approximately $104 per share). The
conversion rate is subject to adjustment in specified circumstances described in the Indenture. At December 31, 2011, the Convertible Senior
Notes are classified as a current liability in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, as they are due on October 15, 2012, which is in less
than one year.
Accounting guidance issued by the FASB requires the issuer of convertible debt instruments with cash settlement features to account separately
for the liability and equity components of the instrument. Under this guidance, the debt is recognized at the present value of its cash flows
discounted using the issuer’s nonconvertible debt borrowing rate at the time of issuance and the equity component is recognized as the difference
between the proceeds from the issuance of the note and the fair value of the liability, net of taxes. The reduced carrying value on the convertible
debt results in a debt discount that is accreted back to the convertible debt’s principal amount through the recognition of noncash interest
expense, over the expected life of the debt, which results in recognizing interest expense on these borrowings at effective rates approximating
what we would have incurred had nonconvertible debt with otherwise similar terms been issued.
In accordance with this guidance, we measured the fair value of the debt components of the Convertible Senior Notes at the Issuance Date using
an effective interest rate of 5.6 percent. As a result, we attributed $75.7 million of the proceeds received to the conversion feature of the
Convertible Senior Notes at the Issuance Date, which is netted against the face value of the Convertible Senior Notes as a debt discount. This
amount represents the excess proceeds received over the fair value of the Convertible Senior Notes at the Issuance Date and is being accreted
back to the principal amount of the Convertible Senior Notes through the recognition of noncash interest expense over the expected life of the
Convertible Senior Notes. In addition, we recorded $48.3 million within Additional paid-in capital in our Condensed Consolidated Balance
Sheets representing the equity component of the Convertible Senior Notes, which is net of deferred taxes. The effect of this guidance has
resulted in a decrease to net income and earnings per share for all periods presented; however, there is no effect on our cash interest payments.
The principal amounts, unamortized discount and net carrying amounts of the liability components and the equity components for the
Convertible Senior Notes as of December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011 are as follows:
Unamortized

December 31, 2011
June 30, 2011

Principal
Balance

$400,000
$400,000

Discount

Net
Carrying
Amount

Equity
Component

$ (13,227)
$ (21,599)

$386,773
$378,401

$ 48,323
$ 48,323

At December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, the unamortized discount is recognized as a reduction in the carrying value of the Convertible Senior
Notes in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and is amortized to Interest expense, net in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of
Income over the expected remaining term of the Convertible Senior Notes of 10 months as of December 31, 2011.
Debt issuance costs of $4.8 million were recorded in connection with this transaction and are included in Other assets in our Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets and are also being amortized to Interest expense, net in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income over the
expected remaining term of the Convertible Senior Notes. The unamortized balance of debt issuance costs at December 31, 2011 and June 30,
2011 was $0.6 million and $1.1 million, respectively.
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Total interest expense related to the Convertible Senior Notes for the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, includes $1.3 million in
both periods for contractual cash interest expense, and an additional $4.2 million and $4.0 million of noncash interest expense, respectively,
related to the amortization of the discount and $0.2 million in both periods related to the amortization of debt issuance costs.
Total interest expense related to the Convertible Senior Notes for the six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, includes $2.5 million in
both periods for contractual cash interest expense, and an additional $8.4 million and $7.9 million of noncash interest expense, respectively,
related to the amortization of the discount and $0.4 million in both periods related to the amortization of debt issuance costs.
At December 31, 2011, we were in compliance with all covenants under the Indenture, as amended.
Registration Rights Agreement
On October 23, 2007, we entered into a registration rights agreement (the “Registration Rights Agreement”) requiring us to register the
Convertible Senior Notes and the shares contingently issuable upon conversion of the Convertible Senior Notes. On October 23, 2008, we filed
an automatically effective registration statement with the SEC to meet this requirement. We were required to keep the registration statement
effective until the earlier of (a) such time as the Convertible Senior Notes and the shares contingently issuable under the Convertible Senior
Notes (1) are sold under an effective registration statement or pursuant to Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933, (2) are freely transferable under
Rule 144 more than one year following October 23, 2007, or (3) cease to be outstanding, and (b) five years and three months following
October 23, 2007. In the event that we fail to keep a registration statement effective as required under the Registration Rights Agreement,
additional interest will accrue on the Convertible Senior Notes at the rate of 0.25 percent per annum.
On October 21, 2011, Harman entered into an Amendment to the Registration Rights Agreement with the holders of the Convertible Senior
Notes, which provides for the postponement of our obligation to file a new registration statement covering the Convertible Senior Notes until
such time as one of the holders of the Convertible Senior Notes demands that we file a registration statement. Upon the receipt of such a demand,
we will have seven business days to file a registration statement with the SEC covering the Convertible Senior Notes. The holders of the
Convertible Senior Notes have not demanded a registration statement. We do not believe it is probable that we will fail to comply with the
Registration Rights Agreement, therefore no liability for additional interest has been recorded.
Note 10 – Income Taxes
Our provision for income taxes is based on an estimated annual tax rate for the year applied to federal, state and foreign income. Income tax
expense for the three months ended December 31, 2011 was $22.7 million, compared to $6.6 million for the same period in the prior year. The
effective tax rate for the three months ended December 31, 2011 was 27.7 percent, compared to 11.1 percent for the same period in the prior
year. The change in the effective tax rate for the three months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in the prior year was
primarily due to higher income in the United States that is subject to a tax rate greater than our key foreign jurisdictions and the temporary
reinstatement of the research and experimentation tax credit in the second quarter of the prior year, which was retroactively applied back to
January 1, 2010.
Income tax expense for the six months ended December 31, 2011 was $37.6 million, compared to $14.3 million for the same period in the prior
year. The effective tax rate for the six months ended December 31, 2011 was 25.9 percent, compared to 15.1 percent for the same period in the
prior year. The change in the effective tax rate for the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in the prior year was
primarily due to higher income in the United States that is subject to a tax rate greater than our key foreign jurisdictions and the temporary
reinstatement of the research and experimentation tax credit in the second quarter of the prior year, which was retroactively applied back to
January 1, 2010.
As of December 31, 2011, we have gross deferred tax assets of $440.1 million, deferred tax liabilities of $51.0 million and a valuation allowance
against our deferred tax assets of $161.6 million. In assessing the recoverability of our deferred tax assets, we regularly consider whether some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized based on the recognition threshold and measurement of a tax position in accordance
with the FASB Accounting Standard Codification 740 “Income Taxes.” The ultimate realization of our deferred tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of future taxable income of the proper character and source prior to the expiration of our net operating loss and tax credit
carryforward periods. We consider the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, cumulative book income or losses, projected future taxable
income, projected source of taxable income between foreign and domestic, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.
As of December 31, 2011, unrecognized tax benefits and the related interest were $32.1 million and $1.0 million, respectively; all but $1.7
million would affect the tax rate if recognized. During the three and six months ended December 31, 2011, we recorded tax reserves on uncertain
tax positions in the amount of $0.7 million and $1.2 million, respectively. During the three and six months ended December 31, 2011, we
recorded additional interest expense on uncertain tax positions of $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively.
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Note 11 – Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, we had no shares of preferred stock outstanding. We are authorized to issue 5 million shares of
preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share.
Common Stock
We have 200 million authorized shares of common stock, $0.01 par value per share. At December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, we had
95,778,318 and 95,520,068 shares issued; 25,599,817 shares in treasury stock in each period, and 70,178,501 and 69,920,251 outstanding (net of
treasury stock), respectively.
Changes in Equity:
The following is a summary of the changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (“AOCI”) and changes in equity for the six months
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:
Additional
Paid-in
Capital

AOCI

Retained
Earnings

Treasury Stock

Total Equity

956
0
0
0
0

$915,433
0
0
0
0

$ 136,733
0
(110,394)
51,700
(345)

$1,418,106
107,622
0
0
0

$ (1,047,570)
0
0
0
0

$1,423,658
107,622
(110,394)
51,700
(345)

0

0

0

(177)

0

0
0
0
0

2
0
0
958

(28)
7,631
0
$923,036

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Preferred
Stock

Balance at June 30, 2011
Net income
Foreign currency translation
Unrealized gain on hedging derivatives
Pension liability adjustment
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities
Comprehensive income
Exercise of stock options, net of shares
received
Share-based compensation, net
Dividends ($0.30 per share)
Balance at December 31, 2011

$

Common
Stock

0
0
0
0
0

$

$

$

Preferred
Stock

Balance at June 30, 2010
Net income
Foreign currency translation
Unrealized loss on hedging derivatives
Pension liability adjustment
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
Comprehensive income
Exercise of stock options, net of shares
received
Share-based compensation, net
Balance at December 31, 2010

$

$

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

$

$

0
0
0
$ 77,517

AOCI

952
0
0
0
0
0

$892,129
0
0
0
0
0

$

1
0
953

2,198
9,277
$903,604

0
0
$ 54,128
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3,666
0
80,474
(31,739)
(357)
2,084

0

(177)
48,406

0
0
(10,504)
$1,515,224

0
0
0
$ (1,047,570)

(26)
7,631
(10,504)
$1,469,165

Retained
Earnings

Treasury Stock

Total Equity

$1,285,715
80,440
0
0
0
0

$ (1,047,570)
0
0
0
0
0

$1,134,892
80,440
80,474
(31,739)
(357)
2,084
130,902

0
0
$1,366,155

0
0
$ (1,047,570)

2,199
9,277
$1,277,270
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At December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, AOCI consisted of the following:
December 31,
2011

June 30,
2011

71,740
(18,648)
28,516
(4,091)
$ 77,517

$182,134
(18,303)
(23,184)
(3,914)
$136,733

Income/(Loss):

Cumulative translation adjustment
Pension liability adjustment
Unrealized gain (loss) on hedging derivatives
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities
Total AOCI

$

We have approximately $1.7 million and $1.9 million of investments at December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, respectively, included in Other
current assets in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets that have been classified as available-for-sale securities. These securities are
recorded at fair value with realized gains and losses recorded in income and unrealized gains and losses recorded in AOCI, net of taxes.
Share Buy-Back Program
On October 26, 2011, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $200 million of our common stock. This
buyback program allows us to purchase shares of our common stock in accordance with applicable securities laws on the open market, or
through privately negotiated transactions, through October 25, 2012. We will determine the timing and the amount of any repurchases based on
an evaluation of market conditions, share price and other factors. The buyback program may be suspended or discontinued at any time. As of
December 31, 2011, we have not repurchased any shares under the buyback program.
Note 12 – Share-Based Compensation
On December 7, 2011 (the “Effective Date”), our shareholders approved the 2012 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the “2012 Plan”), which is
effective through December 7, 2021. As of the Effective Date, no further grants may be granted under our former plan, the Amended and
Restated 2002 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the “2002 Plan” and together with the 2012 Plan, the “Plans”). There are 4,400,000 shares
available for grant under the 2012 Plan. The 2012 Plan provides for two types of awards: (1) a full value grant, as defined in the 2012 Plan,
under which one award shall reduce the shares available for grant under the 2012 Plan by 1.71 shares, and (2) an option or stock appreciation
right grant, under which one award shall reduce the shares available for grant under the 2012 Plan by one share. During the three and six months
ended December 31, 2011, options to purchase 36,125 shares of our common stock and 8,412 restricted stock units were granted under the 2012
Plan.
Prior to the Effective Date, we had one share-based compensation plan with shares available for future grants, the 2002 Plan. On December 8,
2010, we amended the 2002 Plan to increase the number of shares available under the 2002 Plan for the grant of stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock and restricted stock units by 1,100,000 to an aggregate amount not to exceed 7,860,000 shares of our
common stock. During the six months ended December 31, 2011, options to purchase 454,630 shares of our common stock and 645,558
restricted stock units were granted under the 2002 Plan.
Share-based compensation expense, net was $5.4 million and $5.0 million for the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, and was $7.9 million and $9.3 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The total income tax
benefit recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for share-based compensation arrangements was $1.5 million for each
of the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 and was $2.2 million and $2.6 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively.
Fair Value Determination
The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation model, which uses the
assumptions noted in the following table.
Six Months Ended December 31,
2011
2010

Expected volatility
Weighted-average volatility
Expected annual dividend
Expected term (in years)
Risk-free rate

48.8% - 66.2%
59.4%
$
0.30
1.70 - 3.87
0.2% - 0.7%
12

63.1 - 73.1%
68.8%
$
0.00
1.73 - 3.80
0.5 - 1.2%
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Groups of option holders (directors, executives and non-executives) that have similar historical behavior are considered separately for valuation
purposes. Expected volatilities are based on historical closing prices of our common stock over the expected option term.
We use historical data to estimate option exercises and employee terminations within the valuation model. The expected term of options granted
is derived using the option valuation model and represents the estimated period of time from the date of grant that the option is expected to
remain outstanding. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at
the time of grant.
Stock Option Activity
A summary of option activity under our stock option plans as of December 31, 2011 and changes during the six months ended December 31,
2011 is presented below:
Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price Per
Shares

Outstanding at June 30, 2011
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited or expired
Outstanding at December 31, 2011
Exercisable at December 31, 2011

2,489,998
490,775
(63,638)
(115,639)
2,801,476
1,777,831

Share

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Term (Years)

$ 56.39
34.98
27.68
64.43
$ 52.96
$ 60.46

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

6.36

$ 19,270

6.58
5.46

$ 10,061
$ 5,174

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted for the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $14.12 and $18.13,
respectively, and for the six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $13.26 and $14.75, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options
exercised for the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $0.7 million and $0.9 million, respectively, and for the six months ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $0.9 million and $1.0 million, respectively.
Modification of Certain Stock Option Awards
Prior to fiscal year 2011, certain of the award agreements under the 2002 Plan stated that vested options not exercised were forfeited upon
termination of employment for any reason other than death or disability. However, such award agreements provided that the Compensation and
Option Committee of our Board of Directors (the “Compensation and Option Committee”) could extend the time period to exercise vested
options 90 days beyond the employment termination date for certain employees. During the three and six months ended December 31, 2011 and
2010, the Compensation and Option Committee used this authority. This action represented a modification of the terms or conditions of an
equity award and therefore was accounted for as an exchange of the original award for a new award. Incremental share-based compensation cost
for the excess of the fair value of the new award over the fair value of the original award was immaterial.
Grant of Stock Options with Market Conditions
We granted 330,470 stock options containing a market condition to employees on March 21, 2008. The options vested on March 21, 2011, which
was three years from the date of grant based on a comparison of Harman’s total shareholder return (“TSR”) to the TSR of a selected peer group
of publicly listed multinational companies. TSR was measured as the annualized increase in the aggregate value of a company’s stock price plus
the value of dividends, assumed to be reinvested into shares of the company’s stock at the time of dividend payment. The base price used for the
TSR calculation of $42.19 was the 20-day trading average from February 6, 2008 through March 6, 2008. The ending price used for the TSR
calculation of $49.81 was the 20-day trading average prior to and through March 6, 2011. The grant date fair value of $4.2 million was
calculated using a combination of Monte Carlo simulation and lattice-based models. There was no compensation expense for these awards in the
three and six months ended December 31, 2011, since the awards had vested in a prior period. Share-based compensation expense for these
awards was $0.4 million and $0.7 million for the three and six months ended December 31, 2010.
Restricted Stock Awards
A summary of the status of our nonvested restricted stock as of December 31, 2011 and changes during the six months ended December 31,
2011, is presented below:
Weighted Average
Grant-Date
Fair Value

Shares

Nonvested at June 30, 2011
Vested
Nonvested at December 31, 2011

26,000
(8,000)
18,000
13

$
$

42.71
64.26
33.13
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As of December 31, 2011, there was less than $0.1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock-based
compensation arrangements granted under the 2002 Plan. The weighted average recognition period was 0.2 years. At December 31, 2011, a total
of 18,000 shares of restricted stock were outstanding of which 15,000 were granted under the 2002 Plan and 3,000 were granted outside of the
2002 Plan.
Restricted Stock Units
In the six months ended December 31, 2011, we granted 118,546 restricted stock units with earnings per share (“EPS”) performance conditions,
118,546 restricted stock units with return on invested capital (“ROIC”) performance conditions and 118,546 restricted stock units with market
conditions, under the 2002 Plan. The restricted stock units with EPS performance conditions cliff vest three years from the date of grant based on
the achievement of certain cumulative EPS levels from fiscal years 2012 through 2014. The restricted stock units with ROIC conditions cliff vest
three years from the date of grant based on the achievement of a certain ROIC level in fiscal year 2014. The restricted stock units with market
conditions cliff vest three years from the date of grant based on a comparison of our TSR to the TSR of a selected peer group of publicly listed
multinational companies. The grant date fair value of the restricted stock units with market conditions of $3.3 million was calculated using a
Monte Carlo simulation model. Compensation expense, for both the restricted stock units with performance conditions and the restricted stock
units with market conditions, is recognized ratably over the three-year vesting period based on the grant date fair value and our assessment of the
probability that the applicable targets will be met, which is reassessed each reporting period.
In the six months ended December 31, 2010, we granted 191,721 restricted stock units with EPS performance conditions and 191,715 restricted
stock units with market conditions, under the 2002 Plan. The restricted stock units with EPS performance conditions cliff vest three years from
the date of grant based on the attainment of a certain EPS level in fiscal year 2013. The restricted stock units with market conditions cliff vest
three years from the date of grant based on a comparison of our TSR to the TSR of a selected peer group of publicly listed multinational
companies. The grant date fair value of the restricted stock units with market conditions of $5.2 million was calculated using a Monte Carlo
simulation model. Compensation expense, for both the restricted stock units with performance conditions and the restricted stock units with
market conditions, is recognized ratably over the three-year vesting period based on the grant date fair value and our assessment of the
probability that the applicable targets will be met, which is reassessed each reporting period.
In the six months ended December 31, 2009, we granted 380,400 restricted stock units with performance conditions, under the 2002 Plan. The
restricted stock units cliff vest three years from the date of grant based on the attainment of certain performance targets in fiscal year 2012.
Compensation expense is recognized ratably over the three-year vesting period, on a straight-line basis, based on the grant date fair value and our
assessment of the probability that the performance targets will be met. We have recognized compensation expense based on our estimate of the
probability of achieving the targets, which is reassessed each reporting period.
In the six months ended December 31, 2008, we granted 133,507 restricted stock units with performance conditions under the 2002 Plan. These
restricted stock units vested in September 2011, based on the attainment of certain performance targets in fiscal year 2011. Compensation
expense was recognized ratably over the three-year vesting period, on a straight-line basis, based on the grant date fair value and our assessment
of the probability that the performance targets would be met. We recognized compensation expense based on our estimate of the probability of
achieving the targets. Approximately 50 percent of the restricted stock units vested based on actual attainment of certain targets.
In the six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we also granted 298,332 and 328,788 restricted stock units, without performance or
market conditions, respectively, under the Plans that vest three years from the date of grant.
In January and September 2008, we granted 34,608 and 28,344 cash-settled restricted stock units, respectively, outside the 2002 Plan. These
restricted stock units are accounted for as liability awards and are recorded at the fair value at the end of the reporting period in accordance with
their vesting schedules. During the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, none of these restricted stock units were settled. During
the six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, 1,608 and 9,647 of these restricted stock units were settled, respectively, at a cost of $0.1
million and $0.3 million, respectively. At December 31, 2011, and June 30, 2011, 1,608 and 3,216 cash-settled restricted stock units were
outstanding, respectively.
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A summary of equity classified restricted stock unit activity as of December 31, 2011 and changes during the six months ended December 31,
2011 is presented below:
Shares

Nonvested at June 30, 2011
Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Nonvested at December 31, 2011

1,665,873
653,970
(246,456)
(120,149)
1,953,238

At December 31, 2011, the aggregate intrinsic value of equity classified restricted stock units was $10.0 million and there was $30.8 million of
total unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted stock unit compensation arrangements. The weighted average recognition period was
1.7 years.
Note 13 – Derivatives
We are exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, which could affect our operating results,
financial condition and cash flows. We manage our exposure to these risks through our regular operating and financial activities and, when
appropriate, through the use of derivative financial instruments. These derivative instruments are utilized to hedge economic exposures, as well
as to reduce earnings and cash flow volatility resulting from shifts in market rates. We enter into limited types of derivative contracts, including
foreign currency spot, forward and option contracts and an interest rate swap, to manage foreign currency and interest rate exposures. Our
primary foreign currency exposure is the Euro. The fair market values of all our derivative contracts change with fluctuations in interest rates and
currency rates and are designed so that any changes in their values are offset by changes in the values of the underlying exposures. Derivative
financial instruments are held solely as risk management tools and not for trading or speculative purposes.
We record all derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities at fair value in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. Certain of these
derivative contracts have been designated as cash flow hedges, whereby gains and losses are reported within AOCI in our Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets, until the underlying transaction occurs, at which point they are reported in earnings as gains and losses in our
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income. Certain of our derivatives, for which hedge accounting is not applied, are effective as economic
hedges. These derivative contracts are required to be recognized each period at fair value, with gains and losses reported in earnings in our
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income and therefore do result in some level of earnings volatility. The level of volatility will vary with
the type and amount of derivative hedges outstanding, as well as fluctuations in the currency and interest rate markets during the period. The
related cash flow impacts of all our derivative activities are reflected as cash flows from operating activities.
Derivatives, by their nature, involve varying degrees of market and credit risk. The market risk associated with these instruments resulting from
currency exchange and interest rate movements is expected to offset the market risk of the underlying transactions, assets and liabilities being
hedged. We do not believe there is significant risk of loss in the event of non-performance by the counterparties associated with these
instruments, because these transactions are executed with a diversified group of major financial institutions. Furthermore, our policy is to
contract only with counterparties having a minimum investment grade or better credit rating. Credit risk is managed through the continuous
monitoring of exposure to such counterparties.
Foreign Exchange Risk Management
We use foreign exchange contracts to hedge the price risk associated with foreign denominated forecasted purchases of materials used in our
manufacturing process and to manage currency risk associated with operating costs in certain operating units, including foreign currency
denominated intercompany loans and other foreign currency denominated assets. These contracts generally mature in one year or less. The
majority of these contracts are designated as cash flow hedges.
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At December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, we had outstanding foreign exchange contracts, including forward and option contracts, which are
summarized below:

Currency Hedged (Buy/Sell):
U.S. Dollar/Euro
Swiss Franc/U.S. Dollar
British Pound/U.S. Dollar
British Pound/Swiss Franc
Euro/British Pound
U.S. Dollar/Brazilian Real
U.S. Dollar/British Pound
Chinese Yuan/U.S. Dollar
Euro/U.S. Dollar
U.S. Dollar/Japanese Yen
Japanese Yen/Euro
Hungarian Forint/Euro
Total
(1)

December 31, 2011
Gross Notional
Fair Value
Asset/
Value
(Liability) (1)

June 30, 2011
Gross Notional
Fair Value
Asset/
Value
(Liability) (1)

$

$

$

651,300
37,309
11,700
6,528
5,184
10,400
4,500
17,300
38,150
600
10,379
7,407
800,757

$ 38,007
(763)
(380)
123
(45)
98
129
79
(2,448)
(8)
662
(250)
$ 35,204

$

612,400
41,647
20,700
15,408
11,604
10,400
8,500
6,188
8,200
900
0
0
735,947

$ (33,760)
516
(152)
(574)
163
(1,249)
(76)
84
146
(22)
0
0
$ (34,924)

Represents the net receivable/(payable) included in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Cash Flow Hedges

We designate a portion of our foreign currency derivative contracts as cash flow hedges of foreign currency denominated purchases. As of
December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, we had $555.8 million and $528.4 million of forward and option contracts maturing through May 2013
and June 2012, respectively. These contracts are recorded at fair value in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The
changes in fair value for these contracts on a spot to spot basis are reported in AOCI, and are reclassified to either Cost of sales or Selling,
general and administrative expense (“SG&A”), depending on the nature of the underlying asset or liability that is being hedged, in our
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income, in the period or periods during which the underlying transaction occurs. If it becomes apparent
that an underlying forecasted transaction will not occur, the amount recorded in AOCI related to the hedge is reclassified to Foreign exchange
losses, net in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income in the then-current period. Amounts relating to such reclassifications were
immaterial in each of the three and six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.
Changes in the fair value of the derivatives are highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of the hedged items because the amounts
and the maturities of the derivatives approximate those of the forecasted exposures. Any ineffective portion of the derivative is recognized in the
current period in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income, in the same line item in which the foreign currency gain or loss on the
underlying hedged transaction was recorded. No amount of ineffectiveness was recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income
for the three and six months ended December 31, 2011 and we recognized less than $0.1 million of ineffectiveness for the three and six months
ended December 31, 2010. All components of each derivative’s gain or loss, with the exception of forward points (see below), were included in
the assessment of hedge ineffectiveness. At December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, the fair value of these contracts was a net asset of $31.6
million and a net liability of $25.2 million, respectively. The amount associated with these hedges that is expected to be reclassified from AOCI
to earnings within the next 12 months is a gain of $40.8 million.
We elected to exclude forward points from the effectiveness assessment. At the end of the reporting period, we calculate the excluded amount,
which is the fair value relating to the change in forward points that is recorded in current earnings as Foreign exchange losses, net in our
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income. For the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we recognized $1.8 million of net
losses and less than $0.1 million of net gains, respectively, related to the change in forward points. For the six months ended December 31, 2011
and 2010, we recognized $5.4 million of net losses and $0.8 million of net losses, respectively, related to the change in forward points.
Effective July 1, 2011, we changed the functional currency of two of our foreign subsidiaries to the U.S. Dollar to reflect a change in the
currency such subsidiaries primarily generate and expend cash. In addition, we recognized approximately $1.4 million as Foreign exchange
losses, net in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the three and six months ended December 31, 2011 due to the revaluation of
certain derivative instruments held at these subsidiaries because we did not meet the requisite documentation requirements to attain hedge
accounting treatment. As of January 1, 2012, the documentation was amended to achieve hedge accounting treatment going forward.
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Economic Hedges
When hedge accounting is not applied to derivative contracts, or after former cash flow hedges have been de-designated as balance sheet hedges,
we recognize the gain or loss on the associated contracts directly in current period earnings in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of
Income, as either Foreign exchange losses, net or Cost of sales according to the underlying exposure. As of December 31, 2011 and June 30,
2011, we had $245.0 million and $207.5 million, respectively, of forward contracts maturing through June 2012, in various currencies that
provide economic hedges to foreign currency denominated intercompany loans and other foreign currency denominated assets. At December 31,
2011 and June 30, 2011, the fair value of these contracts was an asset of $3.6 million and a liability of $9.7 million, respectively. Adjustments to
the carrying value of the foreign currency forward contracts offset the gains and losses on the underlying loans and other foreign denominated
assets in other non-operating income.
Interest Rate Risk Management
We have one interest rate swap contract with a notional amount of $21.3 million and $24.5 million at December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011,
respectively, in order to manage our interest rate exposure and effectively convert interest on an operating lease from a variable rate to a fixed
rate. The objective of the swap is to offset changes in rent expenses caused by interest rate fluctuations. The interest rate swap contract is
designated as a cash flow hedge. At the end of each reporting period, the discounted fair value of the swap contract is calculated and recorded in
AOCI and reclassified as rent expense, within SG&A in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income, in the then-current period. If the
hedge is determined to be ineffective, the ineffective portion will be reclassified from AOCI and recorded as rent expense, within SG&A. We
recognized less than $0.1 million of ineffectiveness in each of the three and six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, in our Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Income. All components of the derivatives were included in the assessment of the hedged effectiveness. The amount
associated with the swap contract that is expected to be recorded as rent expense in the next 12 months is a loss of $0.6 million.
Fair Value of Derivatives
The following tables provide a summary of the fair value amounts of our derivative instruments at December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011:
Fair Value
December 31,
2011

Balance Sheet Location

Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow
Hedges, Gross:
Other assets:
Foreign exchange contracts
Other liabilities:
Foreign exchange contracts
Interest rate swap
Interest rate swap
Total liabilities
Net asset (liability) for derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Derivatives Designated as Economic
Hedges, Gross:
Other assets:
Foreign exchange contracts
Other liabilities:
Foreign exchange contracts
Net asset/(liability) for economic hedges:
Total net derivative asset (liability)

Other current assets

$

Accrued liabilities
Accrued liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

31,876

June 30,
2011

$

95

226
612
567
1,405

25,335
625
554
26,514

30,471

(26,419)

Other current assets

7,234

1,032

Accrued liabilities

3,680
3,554
34,025

$
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Derivative Activity
The following table shows derivative activity for derivatives designated as cash flow hedges for the three months ended December 31, 2011 and
2010:
Gain/(Loss)
Reclassified
from AOCI
into Income
(Effective
Portion)

Location of
Derivative
Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in
Income

Derivative

2011

Foreign exchange contracts
Foreign exchange contracts

Interest rate swap
Total cash flow hedges

2010

Gain/(Loss)
Recognized
in Income on
Derivatives
(Ineffective
Portion)
Three Months Ended December 31,
2011
2010

Cost of sales
$
Foreign exchange

(517) $ (4,305) $

losses, net
SG&A

0
0
(146)
(197)
(663) $ (4,502) $

$

0

$

0
(3)
(3) $

0

Gain/(Loss)
from Amounts
Excluded from
Effectiveness
Testing
2011

$

2010

2

$

4

8
(1,814)
(1)
(0)
7 $ (1,812) $

(849)
0
(845)

Gain/(Loss) Recognized in AOCI
(Effective Portion)
Three Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

Derivative

Foreign exchange contracts
Interest rate swap
Total cash flow hedges

$

25,619
(40)
25,579

$

$
$

7,956
46
8,002

The following table shows derivative activity for derivatives designated as cash flow hedges for the six months ended December 31, 2011 and
2010:
Gain/(Loss)
Reclassified
from AOCI
into Income
(Effective
Portion)

Location of
Derivative
Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in
Income

Derivative

2011

Foreign exchange contracts
Foreign exchange contracts
Interest rate swap
Total cash flow hedges

2010

Gain/(Loss)
Recognized
in Income on
Derivatives
(Ineffective
Portion)
Six Months Ended December 31,
2011
2010

Cost of sales
$ (11,383) $ (2,006) $
Foreign exchange
losses, net
SG&A

0

0
0
(309)
(389)
$ (11,692) $ (2,395) $

$

0
(4)
(4) $

0

Gain/(Loss)
from Amounts
Excluded from
Effectiveness
Testing
2011

$

2010

2

(19)
(5,462)
(4)
(0)
(23) $ (5,460) $

Gain/(Loss) Recognized in AOCI
(Effective Portion)
Six Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

Derivative

Foreign exchange contracts
Interest rate swap
Total cash flow hedges

$
$
18

60,367
(338)
60,029

$

$
$

(35,788)
(109)
(35,897)

10
(40)
0
(30)
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The following table summarizes gains and losses from our derivative instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments for the three and
six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

Derivative

Location of Derivative Gain/(Loss)

Foreign exchange contracts
Foreign exchange contracts

Cost of sales
Foreign exchange losses, net

Three Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

$ (5,844)
4,794

$

(59)
1,055

Six Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

$(4,597)
6,345

$(677)
(358)

Note 14 – Fair Value Measurements
Pursuant to the accounting guidance for fair value instruments, fair value is defined as the price we would receive to sell an asset or pay to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction with a market participant at the measurement date. When determining the fair value measurements
for assets and liabilities required to be recorded at fair value, we consider the principal or most advantageous market in which it would transact
and we consider assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability.
Fair Value Hierarchy
Under fair value accounting guidance, there is a three-tier fair value hierarchy to prioritize the inputs used in measuring fair value. Observable
inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect our market assumptions.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The
three levels are defined as follows:
Level 1: Observable inputs, such as unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for the identical asset or liability.
Level 2: Inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly through market corroboration, for substantially the full
term of the financial instrument.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs that reflect the entity’s own assumptions in measuring the asset or liability at fair value.
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
For assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, fair value is the price we would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction with a market participant at the measurement date. In the absence of active markets for the identical assets and
liabilities, such measurements involve developing assumptions based on market observable data, and in the absence of such data, internal
information that is consistent with what market participants would use in a hypothetical transaction that occurs at the measurement date.
The following table provides the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis:
Fair Value at December 31, 2011
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3

Description

Assets/(Liabilities)
Short-term investments
Money market funds
Available-for-sale securities
Foreign exchange contracts
Interest rate swap
Contingent consideration
Net asset (liability)

$223,836
35,928
1,730
0
0
0
$261,494

$

0
0
0
35,204
(1,179)
0
$34,025

$

0
0
0
0
0
(22,100)
$(22,100)

Fair Value at June 30, 2011
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3

$317,322
17,492
1,869
0
0
0
$336,683

$

0
0
0
(34,924)
(1,179)
0
$(36,103)

$

$

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

The following describes the valuation methodologies we use to measure assets and liabilities accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis:
Short-Term Investments, Money Market Funds and Available-for-Sale Securities: Short-term investments, money market funds and
available-for-sale securities are classified as Level 1 as the fair value was determined from market quotes obtained from financial institutions in
active markets.
Foreign Exchange Contracts: We use foreign exchange contracts to hedge market risks relating to possible adverse changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. Our foreign exchange contracts were measured at fair value using Level 2 inputs. Such inputs include foreign currency exchange
spot and forward rates for similar transactions in actively quoted markets.
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Interest Rate Swap: We use an interest rate swap to hedge market risk relating to possible adverse changes in interest rates. We have elected to
use the income approach to value our interest rate swap contract, which uses observable Level 2 inputs at the measurement date and standard
valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount (discounted). Level 2 inputs for the swap contract valuation are
limited to quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets (specifically futures contracts on LIBOR, for the first two years) and
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (specifically LIBOR cash and swap rates) at commonly quoted
intervals, and credit risk. These key inputs, including the LIBOR cash rates for very short-term, futures rates for up to two years, and LIBOR
swap rates beyond the derivative maturity are used to construct the swap yield curve and discount the future cash flows to present value at the
measurement date. As the interest rate swap contract is a derivative asset, a credit default swap basis available at commonly quoted intervals has
been collected from Bloomberg and applied to all cash flows. If the interest rate swap contract was determined to be a derivative liability, we
would be required to reflect potential credit risk to lenders using a borrowing rate specific to our company. See Note 13 – Derivatives , for
further discussion regarding our derivative financial instruments.
Contingent Consideration: We use a probability-weighted discounted cash flow approach (a form of the income approach) in determining the
fair value of the contingent consideration related to the acquisition of MWM Acoustics. The principal inputs to the approach include our
expectations of the specific business’ earnings before income taxes (“EBIT”) in fiscal 2014 and a discount rate that begins with our weighted
average cost of capital and adjusts for the risks associated with the underlying EBIT outcome, the functional form of the payout and our credit
risk associated with making the payment. Given the use of significant inputs that are not observable in the market, the contingent liability is
classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Refer to Note 20 – Acquisition for more information on the contingent liability.
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Basis
Certain assets are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. These assets are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject
to fair value adjustments only in certain circumstances. These assets can include loans and long-lived assets that have been reduced to fair value
when they are held for sale, impaired loans that have been reduced based on the fair value of the underlying collateral, cost and equity method
investments and long-lived assets that are written down to fair value when they are impaired and the remeasurement of retained investments in
formerly consolidated subsidiaries upon a change in control that results in deconsolidation of a subsidiary if we sell a controlling interest and
retain a noncontrolling stake in the entity. Assets that are written down to fair value when impaired and retained investments are not
subsequently adjusted to fair value unless further impairment occurs.
The following table provides the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities measured on a non-recurring basis and the losses recorded during
the periods presented:

Description of Assets
Equity method investments
Goodwill
Long-lived assets
Total

Fair Value at
December 31, 2011
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
$
0 $
0 $
0
0
0
184,928
0
0
468,165
$
0 $
0 $
653,093

Level 1
$

$

0
0
0
0

Fair Value at
June 30, 2011
Level 2
Level 3
$
0 $
0
0
119,357
0
448,840
$
0 $
568,197

Total Losses for the
Three Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010
$
0 $
(1,507) $
0
0
0
0
$
0 $
(1,507) $

Total Losses for the
Six Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010
0 $
(1,834)
0
0
0
0
0 $
(1,834)

The following describes the valuation methodologies we use to measure financial and non-financial instruments accounted for at fair value on a
non-recurring basis.
Equity Method Investments : Equity method investments are generally valued using a discounted cash flow model, comparative market
multiples or a combination of both approaches as appropriate. These investments are generally included in Level 3.
Goodwill: Goodwill is evaluated for impairment annually or more frequently if an event or circumstance indicates that an impairment loss may
have been incurred. Refer to Note 8 – Goodwill for further information on the application of goodwill impairment testing. This asset is generally
included in Level 3.
Long-lived Assets : Long-lived assets, include Property, plant and equipment, net and intangible assets, and are valued using the best
information available, including quoted market prices or market prices for similar assets when available or internal cash flow estimates
discounted at an appropriate interest rate or independent appraisals, as appropriate. For real estate, cash flow estimates are based on current
market estimates that reflect current and projected lease profiles and available industry information about expected trends in rental, occupancy
and capitalization rates. These assets are generally included in Level 3.
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Note 15 – Restructuring Program
Our restructuring program that is designed to improve our global footprint, cost structure, technology portfolio, human resources and internal
processes continues. During the three and six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we continued to refine and expand on activities
launched in prior years. During the three and six months ended December 31, 2011, one significant new program was launched to optimize
certain research and development and supply chain functions in our Professional segment. During the three and six months ended December 31,
2010, significant new programs launched included the relocation of certain manufacturing activities from Washington, Missouri to Mexico and
the outsourcing of certain manufacturing activities to third party suppliers.
A summary and components of our restructuring activities are as follows and include accruals for new programs as well as revisions to estimates,
both increases and decreases, to programs accrued in prior periods:
Severance

Facility Closure
Third Party
Contractor
Termination Costs

Related
Costs

Liability, June 30, 2011
Expense (2)
Accumulated depreciation offset
Payments
Foreign currency translation
Liability, December 31, 2011
Liability, June 30, 2010
Expense (2)
Accumulated depreciation offset
Payments
Foreign currency translation
Liability, December 31, 2010
(1)

(2)

$31,762
841
0
(3,072)
(2,144)
$27,387
$33,036
1,141
0
(9,094)
1,991
$27,074

$

$
$

$

0
280
0
(280)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

and Other
Related Costs

$

$
$

$

7,860
713
0
(1,845)
0
6,728
7,562
702
0
(1,483)
59
6,840

Asset
Impairments
(1)

$

$
$

$

0
1,078
(1,078)
0
0
0
0
333
(333)
0
0
0

Total

$ 39,622
2,912
(1,078)
(5,197)
(2,144)
$ 34,115
$ 40,598
2,176
(333)
(10,577)
2,050
$ 33,914

Credits related to restructuring charges for accelerated depreciation and inventory provisions are recorded against the related assets in
Property, plant and equipment, net or Inventory, net in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and do not impact the restructuring
liability.
Restructuring expenses noted above are primarily in SG&A in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income. Asset impairments
which consist of accelerated depreciation and inventory provisions are primarily in Cost of sales in our Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Income.

Restructuring liabilities are recorded in Accrued liabilities and Other non-current liabilities in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Restructuring expenses by reporting business segment are as follows:
Three Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

Infotainment
Lifestyle
Professional
Other
Total
Asset Impairments
Total

$ (415)
190
1,077
45
897
0
$ 897

$ 2,659
645
415
5
3,724
1,357
$ 5,081

Six Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

$

92
340
1,357
45
1,834
1,078
$2,912

$ 2,788
708
(1,919)
266
1,843
333
$ 2,176

Note 16 – Retirement Benefits
Plan Descriptions
Retirement savings plan
We provide the Harman International Industries, Incorporated Retirement Savings Plan (the “Savings Plan”) for certain employees in the United
States. Under the Savings Plan, employees may contribute up to 50 percent of their pretax compensation subject to certain limitations. Each
business unit will make a safe harbor non-elective contribution in an amount equal to three percent of a participant’s eligible contribution. Each
business unit may make a matching contribution of up to three percent (50 percent on the first six percent
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of an employee’s tax-deferred contribution) and, upon approval of our Board of Directors, a profit sharing contribution. Matching and profit
sharing contributions vest at a rate of 25 percent for each year of service with the employer, beginning with the second year of service. Approval
for the profit sharing contribution is requested from our Board of Directors at the end of each fiscal year. Management eliminated the profit
sharing contribution as of December 28, 2010. No amount has been accrued for the profit sharing contribution for the three and six months ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010.
Pension benefits
We provide defined pension benefits to certain eligible employees. The measurement date used for determining pension benefits is the last day
of our fiscal year, June 30 th . We have certain business units in Europe that maintain defined benefit pension plans for a number of our current
and former employees. The coverage provided and the extent to which the retirees’ share in the cost of the program vary by business unit.
Generally, plan benefits are based on age, years of service and average compensation during the final years of service. In the United States, we
have a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the “SERP”) that provides retirement, death and termination benefits, as defined in the SERP,
to certain key executives designated by our Board of Directors. The majority of our defined benefit pension plans do not have contractual or
statutory provisions which specify minimum funding requirements. We are in compliance with all existing contractual obligations and statutory
provisions.
The following table presents the components of net periodic benefit cost for the three and six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:
Three Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost
Amortization of net loss
Net periodic benefit cost

$

398
1,982
(58)
351
449
$ 3,122

$

634
2,040
(55)
351
554
$ 3,524

Six Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

$ 813
4,007
(119)
703
897
$6,301

$1,241
4,038
(109)
703
1,108
$6,981

During the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we made contributions of $2.2 million and $1.9 million, respectively, to the
defined benefit pension plans, substantially all of which were paid to participants. During the six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
we made contributions of $4.3 million and $3.8 million, respectively, to the defined benefit pension plans, substantially all of which were paid to
participants. We expect to make approximately $4.4 million in contributions for the remainder of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012.
Note 17 – Business Segment Data
Effective July 1, 2011, we revised our business segments in order to better align them with our strategic approach to the markets and customers
we serve. While our Professional segment was largely unaffected, we reorganized our Automotive and Consumer segments and created two new
segments, Infotainment and Lifestyle. The Infotainment segment includes our infotainment business, which was previously reported in our
Automotive segment, and Aha Mobile (“Aha”), a company we acquired in September 2010, which was previously reported in our Other
segment. The Lifestyle segment includes our automotive audio business, which was previously reported in our Automotive segment, our
Consumer segment, which was previously reported as a standalone segment, and our luxury home audio business, which was previously reported
in our Professional segment. The Professional segment includes our Professional segment, as previously reported, excluding our luxury home
audio business. The Other segment primarily includes compensation, benefit and occupancy costs for corporate employees, expenses associated
with new technology innovation and our corporate brand identity campaign.
Prior period segment amounts throughout the condensed consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to the new segment structure.
The reclassification of historical business segment information had no impact on our basic financial statements.
The accounting principles applied at the operating segment level in determining income (loss) from operations are the same as those applied at
the consolidated financial statement level. While revenues are specifically identified with our Infotainment segment and the automotive portion
of our Lifestyle segment, costs, expenses and assets for these businesses are allocated based on relative revenues or other measures of activity
that management believes are reasonable. Goodwill was allocated to our Infotainment segment and the automotive portion of our Lifestyle
segment based on the relative fair value of the components of our reporting units that were affected by our change in segments. Refer to Note 8 –
Goodwill for further information. The effects of the change in segments on the Professional segment and the home audio portion of our Lifestyle
segment were immaterial.
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Our chief operating decision maker evaluates performance and allocates resources based on net sales, operating income and working capital in
each of the reporting segments.
Infotainment
Our Infotainment segment designs, manufactures and markets infotainment systems for vehicle applications to be installed primarily as original
equipment by automotive manufacturers.
Lifestyle
Our Lifestyle segment designs, manufactures and markets automotive audio systems for vehicle applications to be installed primarily as original
equipment by automotive manufacturers and a wide range of mid- to high-end audio and consumer electronics for home, multimedia and mobile
applications. Our Lifestyle audio products feature some of the world’s most recognized audio brands, including JBL ® , AKG ® , Harman/Kardon
® , Infinity ® , Mark Levinson ® , Revel ® , Logic 7 ® , Lexicon ® and Selenium ® .
Professional
Our Professional segment designs, manufactures and markets an extensive range of loudspeakers, power amplifiers, digital signal processors,
microphones, headphones and mixing consoles used by audio professionals in concert halls, stadiums, airports, houses of worship and other
public spaces. We also provide high-quality products to the sound reinforcement, music instrument support and broadcast and recording
segments of the professional audio market. We offer complete systems solutions for professional installations and users around the world. Our
Professional products are marketed globally under brand names including JBL Professional ® , AKG, Crown ® , Soundcraft ® , Lexicon, DigiTech
® , dbx ® , BSS ® , Selenium and Studer ® .
Other
Our Other segment includes compensation, benefits and occupancy costs for corporate employees, net of reporting segment allocations, expenses
associated with new technology innovation and our corporate brand identity campaign.
The following table reports Net sales and Operating income (loss) by each reporting segment for the three and six months ended December 31,
2011 and 2010:
Three Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

Net sales:
Infotainment
Lifestyle
Professional
Other
Total
Operating income (loss):
Infotainment
Lifestyle
Professional
Other
Total

Six Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

$ 599,899
368,754
158,376
0
$1,127,029

$ 501,253
307,395
147,025
408
$ 956,081

$1,203,157
668,593
305,882
0
$2,177,632

$ 946,843
558,563
287,213
408
$1,793,027

$

$

$

$

49,947
46,266
25,499
(26,334)
$ 95,378

31,455
36,631
22,164
(22,431)
$ 67,819

97,043
72,662
44,444
(44,593)
$ 169,556

39,138
66,080
46,830
(41,483)
$ 110,565

Note 18 – Significant Customers
Presented below are the percentages of net sales to, and net accounts receivables due from, customers who represent ten percent or more of our
net sales or net accounts receivable, as follows:
Net Sales
Six Months Ended
December 31,
2011

BMW
Audi/Volkswagen
Other customers
Total

21%
13%
66%
100%
23

Accounts Receivable, Net

2010

20%
15%
65%
100%

December 31,
2011

11%
9%
80%
100%

June 30,
2011

17%
9%
74%
100%
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We anticipate that BMW and Audi/Volkswagen will continue to account for a significant portion of our net sales and net accounts receivable for
the foreseeable future. Our customers are not obligated to any long-term purchase of our products.
Note 19 – Commitments and Contingencies
At December 31, 2011, we were subject to legal claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business, including the matters described
below. The outcome of these legal actions cannot be predicted with certainty; however, management, based upon advice from legal counsel,
believes such actions are either without merit or will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.
In re Harman International Industries, Inc. Securities Litigation
On October 1, 2007, a purported class action lawsuit was filed by Cheolan Kim (the “Kim Plaintiff”) against Harman and certain of our officers
in the United States District Court for the District of Columbia (the “Court”) seeking compensatory damages and costs on behalf of all persons
who purchased our common stock between April 26, 2007 and September 24, 2007 (the “Class Period”). The original complaint alleged claims
for violations of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Act”) and Rule 10b-5
promulgated thereunder.
The complaint alleged that the defendants omitted to disclose material adverse facts about Harman’s financial condition and business
prospects. The complaint contended that had these facts not been concealed at the time the merger agreement with Kohlberg Kravis Roberts &
Co. and Goldman Sachs Capital Partners was entered into, there would not have been a merger agreement, or it would have been at a much
lower price, and the price of our common stock therefore would not have been artificially inflated during the Class Period. The Kim Plaintiff
alleged that, following the reports that the proposed merger was not going to be completed, the price of our common stock declined, causing the
plaintiff class significant losses.
On November 30, 2007, the Boca Raton General Employees’ Pension Plan filed a purported class action lawsuit against Harman and certain of
our officers in the Court seeking compensatory damages and costs on behalf of all persons who purchased our common stock between April 26,
2007 and September 24, 2007. The allegations in the Boca Raton complaint are essentially identical to the allegations in the original Kim
complaint, and like the original Kim complaint, the Boca Raton complaint alleges claims for violations of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the
Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.
On January 16, 2008, the Kim Plaintiff filed an amended complaint. The amended complaint, which extended the Class Period through
January 11, 2008, contended that, in addition to the violations alleged in the original complaint, Harman also violated Sections 10(b) and 20(a)
of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder by “knowingly failing to disclose “significant problems” relating to its PND sales
forecasts, production, pricing, and inventory” prior to January 14, 2008. The amended complaint claimed that when “Defendants revealed for the
first time on January 14, 2008 that shifts in PND sales would adversely impact earnings per share by more than $1.00 per share in fiscal 2008,”
that led to a further decline in our share value and additional losses to the plaintiff class.
On February 15, 2008, the Court ordered the consolidation of the Kim action with the Boca Raton action, the administrative closing of the Boca
Raton action, and designated the short caption of the consolidated action as In re Harman International Industries, Inc. Securities Litigation, civil
action no. 1:07-cv-01757 (RWR). That same day, the Court appointed Arkansas Public Retirement System as lead plaintiff (“Lead Plaintiff”)
and approved the law firm Cohen, Milstein, Hausfeld and Toll, P.L.L.C. to serve as lead counsel.
On March 24, 2008, the Court ordered, for pretrial management purposes only, the consolidation of Patrick Russell v. Harman International
Industries, Incorporated, et al. with In re Harman International Industries, Inc. Securities Litigation.
On May 2, 2008, Lead Plaintiff filed a consolidated class action complaint (the “Consolidated Complaint”). The Consolidated Complaint, which
extends the Class Period through February 5, 2008, contends that Harman and certain of our officers and directors violated Sections 10(b) and 20
(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, by issuing false and misleading disclosures regarding our financial condition in
fiscal year 2007 and fiscal year 2008. In particular, the Consolidated Complaint alleges that defendants knowingly or recklessly failed to disclose
material adverse facts about MyGIG radios, portable navigation devices (“PNDs”) and our capital expenditures. The Consolidated Complaint
alleges that when Harman’s true financial condition became known to the market, the price of our common stock declined significantly, causing
losses to the plaintiff class.
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On July 3, 2008, defendants moved to dismiss the Consolidated Complaint in its entirety. Lead Plaintiff opposed the defendants’ motion to
dismiss on September 2, 2008, and defendants filed a reply in further support of their motion to dismiss on October 2, 2008. The motion is now
fully briefed. As of December 31, 2011, the case remained open with no new developments.
Patrick Russell v. Harman International Industries, Incorporated, et al.
Patrick Russell (the “Russell Plaintiff”) filed a complaint on December 7, 2007 in the United States District Court for the District of Columbia
and an amended purported putative class action complaint on June 2, 2008 against Harman and certain of our officers and directors alleging
violations of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”) and seeking, on behalf of all participants in and beneficiaries of
the Savings Plan, compensatory damages for losses to the Savings Plan as well as injunctive relief, imposition of a constructive trust, restitution,
and other monetary relief. The amended complaint alleges that from April 26, 2007 to the present, defendants failed to prudently and loyally
manage the Savings Plan’s assets, thereby breaching their fiduciary duties in violation of ERISA by causing the Savings Plan to invest in our
common stock notwithstanding that the stock allegedly was “no longer a prudent investment for the Participants’ retirement savings.” The
amended complaint further claims that, during the Class Period, defendants failed to monitor the Savings Plan fiduciaries, failed to provide the
Savings Plan fiduciaries with, and to disclose to Savings Plan participants, adverse facts regarding Harman and our businesses and
prospects. The Russell Plaintiff also contends that defendants breached their duties to avoid conflicts of interest and to serve the interests of
participants in and beneficiaries of the Savings Plan with undivided loyalty. As a result of these alleged fiduciary breaches, the amended
complaint asserts that the Savings Plan has “suffered substantial losses, resulting in the depletion of millions of dollars of the retirement savings
and anticipated retirement income of the Savings Plan’s Participants.”
On March 24, 2008, the Court ordered, for pretrial management purposes only, the consolidation of Patrick Russell v. Harman International
Industries, Incorporated, et al . with In re Harman International Industries, Inc. Securities Litigation.
Defendants moved to dismiss the complaint in its entirety on August 5, 2008. The Russell Plaintiff opposed the defendants’ motion to dismiss on
September 19, 2008, and defendants filed a reply in further support of their motion to dismiss on October 20, 2008. The motion is now fully
briefed. As of December 31, 2011, the case remained open with no new developments.
Infotainment Supply Arrangements
We have arrangements with our infotainment customers to provide products that meet predetermined technical specifications and delivery
dates. In the event that we do not satisfy the performance obligations under these arrangements, we may be required to indemnify the
customer. We accrue for any loss that we expect to incur under these arrangements when that loss is probable and can be reasonably estimated.
For the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we incurred $0 and $4.6 million, respectively, of costs relating to delayed delivery of
product to an infotainment customer. For the six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we incurred $4.6 million of costs in each period
relating to delayed delivery of product to an infotainment customer. An inability to meet performance obligations on infotainment platforms to
be delivered in future periods could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition in future periods.
Note 20 – Acquisition
On July 22, 2011, (the “MWM Acquisition Date”), we and our wholly-owned subsidiary, Harman Holding Limited (“Harman Holding”), entered
into an equity securities purchase agreement with a group of sellers (the “MWM Sellers”), to acquire all of the issued and outstanding equity
interests of MWM Acoustics, a leading provider of high performance embedded acoustic solutions (the “MWM Acquisition”), for a purchase
price of $80.0 million (the “Fixed Purchase Price”), which was subject to a working capital adjustment. The working capital adjustment of $0.1
million was determined within 60 days of the MWM Acquisition Date, and was paid once approved. On the MWM Acquisition Date, we and
Harman Holding paid the MWM Sellers a total of $72.0 million. The remainder of the Fixed Purchase Price of $8.0 million will be payable on
the later of December 31, 2012, or upon the resolution of any outstanding indemnification claims. The MWM Acquisition is also subject to a
$57.0 million earn-out, which is payable contingent on the achievement of certain financial targets in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. Our
preliminary valuation of the contingent consideration is $22.1 million. The MWM Acquisition complements and expands our existing
microphone and embedded acoustic business and provides access to MWM Acoustics’ blue-chip customer base.
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The total estimated cost of the MWM Acquisition, including the fair value of the contingent consideration, was allocated to the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed based on their preliminary fair values at the MWM Acquisition Date, as follows:
July 22,
2011

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other current assets
Current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Intangibles
Other noncurrent assets
Total assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Total current liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets

$

1,465
4,434
1,062
42
7,003
273
79,757
20,600
1,091
108,724
5,187
206
5,393
1,125
6,518
$102,206

Based on our preliminary valuation, goodwill and intangibles were recorded in connection with the acquisition based on third-party valuations
and management’s estimates for those acquired intangible assets. The valuation of the acquired net assets is subject to change as we obtain
additional information for our estimates during the measurement period. The primary areas of those purchase price allocations that are not yet
finalized relate to identifiable intangible assets, certain legal matters, the achievement of the earn-out and residual goodwill. Goodwill was
calculated as the excess of the consideration transferred over the net assets recognized and represents the future economic benefits arising from
other assets acquired that could not be individually identified and separately recognized. Of the $79.8 million of goodwill recognized,
approximately $35.6 million is deductible for tax purposes. Intangible assets included customer relationships of $19.2 million with an
approximate useful life of ten years and technology of $1.4 million with an approximate useful life of four years. Expenses of $0.9 million were
recognized in connection with this acquisition and are included in SG&A in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the three and
six months ended December 31, 2011. The operating results of MWM Acoustics are included in our Lifestyle segment. Pro-forma financial
information has not been presented as the MWM Acquisition is not material to our results of operations.
Note 21 – Related Party Transactions
From time to time we enter into transactions with related parties. In December 2009, we entered into a three-year agreement for engineering and
software development services with Neusoft Corporation (“Neusoft”), a Shanghai exchange listed technology solutions provider. A member of
our Board of Directors is the Chairman and CEO of Neusoft.
On April 20, 2010, our former subsidiary, innovative Systems GmbH (“IS”) entered into an asset purchase and business transfer agreement (the
“Asset Purchase Agreement”) with Neusoft Technology Solutions GmbH (“Neusoft Technology”), which is a subsidiary of Neusoft, for the sale
of certain tangible assets located at IS’s facility in Hamburg, Germany. This transaction closed on June 1, 2010. As part of the Asset Purchase
Agreement, IS and Neusoft Technology entered into a five-year agreement for engineering and software development services related to IS’s
vehicle navigation business (the “Services Agreement”). Under the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement, IS transferred at closing certain
tangible assets and employment relationships to Neusoft Technology and received consideration of €6 million. Our subsidiary, Harman Becker
Automotive Systems GmbH and Neusoft Europe AG, a subsidiary of Neusoft, are guarantors under the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement
and the Services Agreement. During the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we incurred total expenses of $8.6 million and $5.8
million, respectively, for engineering and software development services with Neusoft Technology and Neusoft. During the six months ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, we incurred total expenses of $16.2 million and $11.4 million, respectively, for engineering and software
development services with Neusoft Technology and Neusoft.
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Note 22 – Sale of Intellectual Property
Effective February 15, 2011, we entered into an agreement with a third party pursuant to which we monetized certain intellectual property rights.
Income of less than $0.1 million and $0.3 million was recognized in connection with this transaction, which is included in the Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Income for the three and six months ended December 31, 2011, respectively, under the caption Sale of intellectual
property.
Note 23 – Subsequent Events
Dividend Declaration
On February 7, 2012, we declared a cash dividend of $0.075 per share for the quarter ended December 31, 2011. The quarterly dividend will be
paid on March 5, 2012 to each stockholder of record as of the close of business on February 17, 2012.
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Item 2.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

General
Effective July 1, 2011 we revised our business segments in order to better align them with our strategic approach to the markets and customers
we serve. While our Professional segment was largely unaffected, we reorganized our Automotive and Consumer segments and created two new
segments, Infotainment and Lifestyle. The Infotainment segment includes our infotainment business, which was previously reported in our
Automotive segment, and Aha Mobile (“Aha”), a company we acquired in September 2010, which was previously reported in our Other
segment. The Lifestyle segment includes our automotive audio business, which was previously reported in our Automotive segment, our
Consumer segment, which was previously reported as a standalone segment, and our luxury home audio business, which was previously
reported in our Professional segment. The Professional segment includes our Professional segment, as previously reported, excluding our luxury
home audio business. The Other segment primarily includes compensation, benefit and occupancy costs for corporate employees, expenses
associated with new technology innovation and our corporate brand identity campaign. Prior period segment amounts throughout the
condensed consolidated financial statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations have
been reclassified to conform to the current segment structure.
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and the
related notes included in Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 (our “2011 Annual Report”). This
discussion contains forward-looking statements which are based on our current expectations and experience and our perception of historical
trends, current market conditions, including customer acceptance of our new products, current economic data, expected future developments,
foreign currency exchange rates, and other factors that we believe are appropriate under the circumstances. These statements involve risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those suggested in the forward-looking statements. Unless otherwise
indicated, “Harman,” “our company,” “we,” “our,” and “us” are used interchangeably to refer to Harman International Industries,
Incorporated and its consolidated subsidiaries.
Executive Overview
We believe we are a worldwide leader in the development, manufacturing and marketing of high quality, high fidelity audio products and
electronic systems, as well as digitally integrated infotainment systems for the automotive industry. We have developed a broad range of product
offerings which we sell in our principal markets under renowned brand names, including AKG ® , Crown ® , JBL ® , Infinity ® , Harman/Kardon
® , Lexicon ® , dbx ® , BSS ® , Studer ® , Soundcraft ® , Mark Levinson ® , Becker ® , Revel ® and Selenium ® . We have built these brands by
developing our engineering, manufacturing and marketing competencies, and have employed these resources to establish our company as a
leader in the markets we serve.
We report our business on the basis of four segments. Our Infotainment, Lifestyle and Professional segments are based on our strategic approach
to the markets and customers we serve. Our fourth segment, Other, primarily includes compensation, benefit and occupancy costs for corporate
employees and expenses associated with new technology innovation and our corporate brand identity campaign.
We believe that innovation is an important element to gaining market acceptance of our products and strengthening our market position. We
have a history of leveraging our continuous technological innovation across all of the markets we serve. We have a well-deserved reputation for
delivering premium audio and infotainment solutions across a full spectrum of applications. We believe that our technological innovation, the
quality of our products and our reputation for on-time delivery have resulted in a substantial amount of awarded Infotainment and Lifestyle
business. We have a cumulative estimated $14.0 billion of future awarded Infotainment and Lifestyle automotive business as of December 31,
2011, which represents the estimated future lifetime net sales for all customers. Our future awarded business does not represent firm customer
orders. We calculate our awarded business using various assumptions including global vehicle production forecasts, customer take rates for our
products, revisions to product life cycle estimates and the impact of annual price reductions, among other factors. These assumptions are updated
on an annual basis. We update our estimates quarterly by adding the value of new awards received and subtracting sales recorded during the
quarter. We believe our currently awarded automotive business will position us well for follow-on and new business with these existing
customers.
Our management uses the amount of our future awarded business for short- and long-term budgeting and forecasting, development of earnings
guidance and for planning future corporate investment and other activities, such as capital expenditures and restructuring. Our future awarded
business is also an input used to approximate our enterprise value. We believe our investors utilize this information for a number of reasons,
including evaluating our future financial performance over time, to model our financial results of operations, to understand the risks inherent in
our current operating plan, and as an input to approximate our enterprise value. However, our estimates of future awarded automotive business
are forward-looking statements and may not be actually achieved. See the risk factor “We may not realize sales represented by awarded
business” in Item 1A “Risk Factors” in our 2011 Annual Report.
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Our products are sold worldwide, with the largest markets located in the United States and Germany. In the United States, our primary
manufacturing facilities are located in Kentucky, Missouri, Indiana and Utah. Outside of the United States, we have manufacturing facilities in
Austria, Brazil, China, Hungary, France, Germany, Mexico and the United Kingdom.
Our sales and earnings may vary due to the production schedules of our automotive customers, the holiday buying season for home audio
products, customer acceptance of our products, the timing of new product introductions, product offerings by our competitors and general
economic conditions. Since most of our businesses operate using local currencies, our reported sales and earnings may also fluctuate due to
foreign currency exchange rates, especially for the Euro.
We believe significant opportunities exist to grow our business in all three of our business segments in emerging markets such as Brazil, Russia,
India and China. To execute this strategy, we have hired dedicated regional country staff and managers in these markets. During the three
months ended December 31, 2011, sales grew in these emerging markets to $136.9 million, an increase of $33.4 million, or 32.3 percent over the
prior year amounts. During the six months ended December 31, 2011, sales grew in these emerging markets to $251.6 million, an increase of
$59.6 million, or 31.0 percent over the prior year amounts. We expect our market share to continue to grow significantly in these countries in the
future.
We continue to focus our efforts on improving our cost structure to enable us to remain competitive. We continue to roll out our global
marketing campaign, featuring some of the world’s most prominent artists such as Jennifer Lopez and Tim McGraw, in order to increase brand
awareness and support growth and market share gains across our entire business.
Critical Accounting Policies
For the three and six months ended December 31, 2011, there were no significant changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates from
those disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and the related notes included in our 2011 Annual Report, except for recently adopted
accounting standards disclosed in Note 2 – New Accounting Standards in the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the
three and six months ended December 31, 2011.
Recently Issued Accounting Standards
Balance Sheet: In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 201111, “Balance Sheet (Topic 210), Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities,” which requires companies to disclose information about
financial instruments that have been offset and related arrangements to enable users of its financial statements to understand the effect of those
arrangements on its financial condition. Companies will be required to provide both net (offset amounts) and gross information in the notes to
the financial statements for relevant assets and liabilities that are offset. The new guidance is effective retrospectively for fiscal years and interim
periods with those fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2013. We will adopt the provisions of this new guidance on July 1, 2013. We do
not expect the adoption of the new provisions to have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.
Fair Value: In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, “Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Achieve Common Fair
Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs.” The new guidance does not extend the use of fair value
accounting, but provides guidance on how to apply fair value accounting, where its use is already required, or permitted by other standards
within accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”) or International Financial Reporting Standards. The new guidance also
changes the wording used to describe many requirements in GAAP for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value
measurements and it clarifies the FASB’s intent about the application of existing fair value measurements. The new guidance applies
prospectively and is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. We will adopt the provisions of this new
guidance on January 1, 2012. We do not expect the adoption of the new provisions to have a material impact on our financial condition or results
of operations.
Comprehensive Income: In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive
Income” (“ASU 2011-05”). The new guidance requires that all non-owner changes in stockholders’ equity be presented either in a single
continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. In both cases, an entity is required to present each
component of net income along with total net income, each component of other comprehensive income along with a total for other
comprehensive income, and a total amount for comprehensive income. If presented in a single continuous statement, the entity is required to
present the components of net income and total net income, the components of other comprehensive income and a total for other comprehensive
income, along with the total of comprehensive income in that statement. If presented in the two-statement approach, the first statement which is
the statement of net income, should present components of net income and total net income followed consecutively by a second statement which
is the statement of other comprehensive income, that should present the components of other comprehensive income, total other comprehensive
income and a total amount for comprehensive income. Regardless of the method used, the entity is required to present on the face of the financial
statements reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified from other comprehensive income to net income in the statement where the
components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income are presented. In December 2011, the FASB
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issued ASU 2011-12 “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of
Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05” (“ASU 2011-12”).
ASU 2011-12 temporarily deferred the requirement to present on the face of the financial statements reclassification adjustments for items that
are reclassified from other comprehensive income to net income in the statement where the components of net income and the components of
other comprehensive income are presented. The guidance in ASU 2011-05, as amended, is effective retrospectively for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. We will adopt the provisions of this new guidance on July 1, 2012. We do
not expect the adoption of the new provisions to have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.
Results of Operations
Net Sales
Net sales for the three months ended December 31, 2011 were $1,127.0 million compared to $956.1 million in the same period in the prior year,
an increase of 18 percent, or 19 percent excluding foreign currency translation. Net sales increased in all of our operating segments compared to
the same period in the prior year. The increase in net sales was primarily in our Infotainment and our Lifestyle segments, and was partially
driven by new infotainment product launches, increases in net sales of scalable and mid-level infotainment systems, increases in sales of our
audio products to automotive manufacturers and the addition of MWM Acoustics, LLC and certain related entities (“MWM Acoustics”), a group
of companies we acquired in July 2011. These increases were partially offset by unfavorable currency translation of $4.7 million.
Net sales for the six months ended December 31, 2011 were $2,177.6 million compared to $1,793.0 million in the same period in the prior year,
an increase of 21 percent, or 19 percent excluding foreign currency translation. Net sales increased in all of our operating segments compared to
the same period in the prior year. The increase in net sales was primarily in our Infotainment and our Lifestyle segments, and was partially
driven by new infotainment product launches and higher production volumes partially driven by a temporary increase in sales due to the inability
of a competitor to supply its customers, increases in sales of our audio products to automotive manufacturers, increases in net sales of scalable
and mid-level infotainment systems, the addition of MWM Acoustics and favorable foreign currency translation of $41.4 million.
A summary of our net sales by business segment is presented below:
2011

Net sales:
Infotainment
Lifestyle
Professional
Other
Total

Three Months Ended December 31,
%
2010

$ 599,899
368,754
158,376
—
$1,127,029

53% $501,253
33% 307,395
14% 147,025
—
408
100% $956,081

%

2011

52% $1,203,157
32%
668,593
16%
305,882
—
—
100% $2,177,632

Six Months Ended December 31,
%
2010

55% $ 946,843
31%
558,563
14%
287,213
—
408
100% $1,793,027

%

53%
31%
16%
—
100%

Infotainment – Net sales for the three months ended December 31, 2011 increased $98.6 million or 20 percent compared to the same period in
the prior year, both including and excluding foreign currency translation. The increase in net sales was driven by increased demand in the luxury
automotive segment, increases in scalable infotainment system sales and continued growth in Brazil, Russia, India and China (“BRIC”). These
increases were partially offset by unfavorable foreign currency translation of $3.1 million.
Net sales for the six months ended December 31, 2011 increased $256.3 million or 27 percent compared to the same period in the prior year, or
23 percent excluding foreign currency translation. The increase in net sales was driven by new product launches, higher production volumes,
extension of current product offerings on new vehicle platforms, and favorable foreign currency translation of $30.4 million. In addition, we had
a temporary increase in net sales in the first quarter of fiscal year 2012, related to the Japanese earthquake and tsunami in fiscal year 2011, due to
the inability of a competitor to supply its customers.
Lifestyle – Net sales for the three months ended December 31, 2011 increased $61.4 million, or 20 percent, compared to the same period in the
prior year, or 21 percent excluding foreign currency translation. The increase in net sales was primarily due to increased demand in the luxury
automotive segment, higher sales in the BRIC countries, surcharges to certain automotive audio customers to recover increased costs on rare
earth minerals, the addition of MWM Acoustics and increases in home and multimedia product sales. These increases were partially offset by
unfavorable foreign currency translation of $1.4 million.
Net sales for the six months ended December 31, 2011 increased $110.0 million, or 20 percent, compared to the same period in the prior year, or
18 percent excluding foreign currency translation. The increase in net sales was primarily due to higher automotive audio net sales in Europe and
North America, surcharges to certain automotive audio customers to recover increased costs on rare earth minerals, the addition of MWM
Acoustics, increases in home and multimedia product sales and favorable foreign currency translation of $7.9 million.
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Professional – Net sales for the three months ended December 31, 2011 increased $11.4 million or 8 percent compared to the same period in the
prior year, both including and excluding foreign currency translation. The increase in net sales was primarily due to new product introductions
and the development of emerging market distribution channels.
Net sales for the six months ended December 31, 2011 increased $18.7 million or 7 percent compared to the same period in the prior year, or 5
percent excluding foreign currency translation. The increase in net sales was primarily due to new product introductions, the development of
emerging market distribution channels and favorable foreign currency translation of $3.0 million.
Gross Profit
Gross profit as a percentage of net sales decreased 1.0 percentage point to 27.1 percent for the three months ended December 31, 2011 compared
to 28.1 percent of net sales in the same period in the prior year. Gross profit as a percentage of net sales decreased 0.3 percentage points to 27.2
percent for the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared to 27.5 percent of net sales in the same period in the prior year. The decrease in
overall gross profit as a percentage of net sales in both periods was primarily in our Lifestyle and Professional segments due to higher costs for
rare earth neodymium magnets, a key component in speakers, explained in more detail below, and a temporary increase in freight-expediting
expenses related to increased sales caused by pent-up demand from the Japanese earthquake and tsunami which occurred in fiscal year 2011,
partially offset by increases in our Infotainment segment due to higher sales volumes leveraged over a lower cost base driven by productivity
improvement programs.
A summary of our gross profit by business segment is presented below:

2011

Gross profit:
Infotainment
Lifestyle
Professional
Other
Total

$138,665
105,015
61,853
6
$305,539

Three Months Ended December 31,
Percentage
Percentage
of Net Sales
2010
of Net Sales

23.1%
28.5%
39.1%
—
27.1%

$111,131
98,365
58,831
413
$268,740

22.2%
32.0%
40.0%
—
28.1%

2011

$282,775
190,805
119,589
12
$593,181

Six Months Ended December 31,
Percentage
of Net Sales
2010

23.5%
28.5%
39.1%
—
27.2%

$195,362
180,714
116,816
419
$493,311

Percentage
of Net Sales

20.6%
32.4%
40.7%
—
27.5%

Infotainment – Gross profit as a percentage of net sales increased 0.9 percentage points to 23.1 percent for the three months ended December 31,
2011 compared to the same period in the prior year. The increase in gross profit as a percentage of net sales was primarily due to higher sales
volumes leveraged over a lower cost base driven by productivity improvement programs.
Gross profit as a percentage of net sales increased 2.9 percentage points to 23.5 percent for the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared
to the same period in the prior year. The increase in gross profit as a percentage of net sales was primarily due to higher sales volumes leveraged
over a lower cost base driven by productivity improvement programs.
Lifestyle – Gross profit as a percentage of net sales decreased 3.5 percentage points to 28.5 percent for the three months ended December 31,
2011 compared to the same period in the prior year. The decrease in gross profit as a percentage of net sales was primarily due to the successful
implementation of a rare earth mineral cost surcharge program. The surcharges only recover the cost of the rare earth minerals and provide no
gross profit, resulting in a dilutive impact on gross profit as a percentage of sales. In addition, gross profit as a percentage of sales was negatively
impacted by a temporary increase of approximately $4.0 million in freight-expediting expenses related to increased sales caused by pent-up
demand from the Japanese earthquake and tsunami, which occurred in fiscal year 2011, as well as increased sales of lower margin unbranded
automotive audio components.
Gross profit as a percentage of net sales decreased 3.9 percentage points to 28.5 percent for the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared
to the same period in the prior year. The decrease in gross profit as a percentage of net sales was due to $7.6 million of higher costs for rare earth
neodymium magnets, a key component in speakers. These increased costs have been mitigated due to the successful implementation of a rare
earth mineral cost surcharge program, explained above. In addition, gross profit as a percentage of sales was negatively impacted by a temporary
increase of approximately $4.0 million in freight-expediting expenses related to increased sales caused by pent-up demand from the Japanese
earthquake and tsunami, which occurred in fiscal year 2011. These increases were partially offset by higher net sales of automotive audio
products.
Professional – Gross profit as a percentage of net sales decreased 0.9 percentage points to 39.1 percent for the three months ended December 31,
2011 compared to the same period in the prior year. The decrease in gross profit as a percentage of net sales was primarily due to $2.6 million of
higher net costs for rare earth neodymium magnets, a key component in speakers, and higher warehousing and freight costs.
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Gross profit as a percentage of net sales decreased 1.6 percentage points to 39.1 percent for the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared
to the same period in the prior year. The decrease in gross profit as a percentage of net sales was primarily due to $3.5 million of higher net costs
for rare earth neodymium magnets, a key component in speakers, and higher warehousing costs.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”) were $210.2 million for the three months ended December 31, 2011 compared to $200.9
million in the same period in the prior year, an increase of $9.3 million. As a percentage of net sales, SG&A decreased 2.4 percentage points in
the three months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in the prior year. The increase in SG&A was primarily due to higher
research and development expenses (“R&D”) of $12.5 million and higher selling expenses, partially offset by the settlement of an Infotainment
customer’s claim of $4.6 million in the same period in the prior year, and the receipt of $4.0 million of business interruption insurance proceeds
related to the Japanese earthquake and tsunami.
SG&A were $423.9 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared to $382.7 million in the same period in the prior year, an
increase of $41.2 million. As a percentage of net sales, SG&A decreased 1.8 percentage points in the six months ended December 31, 2011
compared to the same period in the prior year. The increase in SG&A was primarily due to higher R&D of $22.4 million, higher selling and
advertising expenses and unfavorable foreign currency translation of $8.8 million, partially offset by the receipt of $4.0 million of business
interruption insurance proceeds related to the Japanese earthquake and tsunami.
A summary of SG&A by business segment is presented below:

2011

SG&A:
Infotainment
Lifestyle
Professional
Other
Total
*

$ 88,737
58,743
36,353
26,341
$210,174

Three Months Ended December 31,
Percentage
Percentage
of Net Sales
2010
of Net Sales

14.8%
15.9%
23.0%
*
18.6%

$ 79,676
61,734
36,666
22,845
$200,921

15.9%
20.1%
24.9%
*
21.0%

2011

$186,037
118,139
75,145
44,605
$423,926

Six Months Ended December 31,
Percentage
of Net Sales
2010

15.5%
17.7%
24.6%
*
19.5%

$156,224
114,634
69,986
41,902
$382,746

Percentage
of Net Sales

16.5%
20.5%
24.4%
*
21.3%

Percent not meaningful.

Infotainment – SG&A increased $9.1 million to $88.7 million for the three months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in the
prior year. The increase in SG&A was primarily due to $13.7 million of higher R&D, partially offset by the settlement of a customer claim of
$4.6 million in the same period in the prior year. As a percentage of net sales, SG&A decreased 1.1 percentage points to 14.8 percent for the
three months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in the prior year. R&D increased $13.7 million to $54.4 million, or 9.1
percent of net sales in the three months ended December 31, 2011, compared to $40.7 million, or 8.1 percent of net sales in the same period in
the prior year. The increase in R&D was primarily related to critical new product launches.
SG&A increased $29.8 million to $186.0 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in the prior year.
The increase in SG&A was primarily due to $23.6 million of higher R&D, unfavorable foreign currency translation of $5.7 million and higher
selling expenses. As a percentage of net sales, SG&A decreased 1.0 percentage point to 15.5 percent for the six months ended December 31,
2011 compared to the same period in the prior year. R&D increased $23.6 million to $113.6 million, or 9.4 percent of net sales in the six months
ended December 31, 2011, compared to $90.0 million, or 9.5 percent of net sales in the same period in the prior year. The increase in R&D was
primarily related to critical new product launches.
Lifestyle – SG&A decreased $3.0 million to $58.7 million for the three months ended December 31, 2011, compared to the same period in the
prior year, primarily due to the receipt of $4.0 million of business interruption insurance proceeds related to the Japanese earthquake and
tsunami, partially offset by increased start-up costs in emerging markets and the addition of MWM Acoustics. As a percentage of net sales,
SG&A decreased 4.2 percentage points to 15.9 percent for the three months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in the prior
year. R&D increased $0.4 million to $13.2 million, or 3.6 percent of net sales in the three months ended December 31, 2011 compared to $12.8
million, or 4.2 percent of net sales in the same period in the prior year.
SG&A increased $3.5 million to $118.1 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011, compared to the same period in the prior year,
primarily due to increases in start-up costs in emerging markets, higher selling expenses, increased spending on marketing activities, the addition
of MWM Acoustics and unfavorable foreign currency translation of $2.3 million. These increases were partially offset by the receipt of $4.0
million of business interruption insurance proceeds related to the Japanese earthquake and tsunami. As a percentage of net sales, SG&A
decreased 2.8 percentage points to 17.7 percent for the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in the prior year.
R&D decreased $0.2 million to $27.8 million, or 4.2 percent of net sales in the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared to $28.0 million,
or 5.0 percent of net sales in the same period in the prior year.
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Professional – SG&A decreased $0.3 million to $36.4 million for the three months ended December 31, 2011, compared to the same period in
the prior year. As a percentage of net sales, SG&A decreased 1.9 percentage points to 23.0 percent for the three months ended December 31,
2011 compared to the same period in the prior year. R&D was flat at $9.0 million in each period, or 5.7 percent of net sales in the three months
ended December 31, 2011, compared to 6.1 percent of net sales in the same period in the prior year.
SG&A increased $5.2 million to $75.1 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011, compared to the same period in the prior year. As a
percentage of net sales, SG&A increased 0.2 percentage points to 24.6 percent for the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the
same period in the prior year. R&D increased $0.1 million to $18.3 million, or 6.0 percent of net sales in the six months ended December 31,
2011, compared to $18.2 million, or 6.3 percent of net sales in the same period in the prior year.
Other – Other SG&A includes compensation, benefit and occupancy costs for corporate employees, new technology innovation and expenses
associated with our corporate brand identity campaign. Other SG&A increased $3.5 million to $26.3 million for the three months ended
December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in the prior year, primarily due to higher advertising and marketing expenses and the launch of
our global brand awareness campaign.
Other SG&A increased $2.7 million to $44.6 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011, compared to the same period in the prior
year, primarily due to higher advertising and marketing expenses and the launch of our global brand awareness campaign, partially offset by an
increase of $3.2 million in forfeitures related to our share-based compensation program.
Restructuring
Our restructuring program that is designed to improve our global footprint, cost structure, technology portfolio, human resources and internal
processes continues. During the three and six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we continued to refine and expand on activities
launched in prior years. During the three and six months ended December 31, 2011, one significant new program was launched to optimize
certain research and development and supply chain functions in our Professional segment. During the three and six months ended December 31,
2010, significant new programs launched included the relocation of certain manufacturing activities from Washington, Missouri to Mexico and
the outsourcing of certain manufacturing activities to third party suppliers.
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A summary and components of our restructuring activities are as follows and include accruals for new programs as well as revisions to estimates,
both increases and decreases, to programs accrued in prior periods:
Severance

Facility Closure
Third Party
Contractor
Termination Costs

Related
Costs

Liability, June 30, 2011
Expense (2)
Accumulated depreciation offset
Payments
Foreign currency translation
Liability, December 31, 2011
Liability, June 30, 2010
Expense (2)
Accumulated depreciation offset
Payments
Foreign currency translation
Liability, December 31, 2010
(1)

(2)

$31,762
841
0
(3,072)
(2,144)
$27,387
$33,036
1,141
0
(9,094)
1,991
$27,074

$

$
$

$

0
280
0
(280)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

and Other
Related Costs

$

$
$

$

7,860
713
0
(1,845)
0
6,728
7,562
702
0
(1,483)
59
6,840

Asset
Impairments
(1)

$

$
$

$

0
1,078
(1,078)
0
0
0
0
333
(333)
0
0
0

Total

$ 39,622
2,912
(1,078)
(5,197)
(2,144)
$ 34,115
$ 40,598
2,176
(333)
(10,577)
2,050
$ 33,914

Credits related to restructuring charges for accelerated depreciation and inventory provisions are recorded against the related assets in
Property, plant and equipment, net or Inventory, net in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and do not impact the restructuring
liability.
Restructuring expenses noted above are primarily in SG&A in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income. Asset impairments
which consist of accelerated depreciation and inventory provisions are primarily in Cost of sales in our Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Income.

Restructuring liabilities are recorded in Accrued liabilities and Other non-current liabilities in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Restructuring expenses by reporting business segment are as follows:
Three Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

Infotainment
Lifestyle
Professional
Other
Total
Asset Impairments
Total

$ (415)
190
1,077
45
897
0
$ 897

$ 2,659
645
415
5
3,724
1,357
$ 5,081

Six Months Ended
December 31,
2011
2010

$

92
340
1,357
45
1,834
1,078
$2,912

$ 2,788
708
(1,919)
266
1,843
333
$ 2,176

Sale of Intellectual Property
Effective February 15, 2011, we entered into an agreement with a third party pursuant to which we monetized certain intellectual property rights.
Income of less than $0.1 million and $0.3 million was recognized in connection with this transaction, which is included in the Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Income for the three and six months ended December 31, 2011, respectively, under the caption Sale of intellectual
property.
Goodwill
In September 2011, we adopted ASU 2011-08 “Intangibles – Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing Goodwill for Impairment,” under which
an entity may first assess qualitative factors in determining whether it is “more likely than not” that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than
its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test. Adoption of this
guidance had no impact on our financial condition or results of operations as no events came to our attention indicating that the fair values of our
reporting units might be less than their carrying values. Refer to Note 2 – New Accounting Standards in the Notes to the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.
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We test for impairment at the reporting unit level on an annual basis as of April 30 th of every year and between annual tests if an event occurs or
circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its carrying value. The impairment test for
goodwill is a two-step process. The first step compares the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying value, with the fair value of each
reporting unit determined using established valuation techniques, specifically the market and income approaches. If the results of the first step
indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, then the second step of this test is conducted wherein the amount of
any impairment is determined by comparing the implied fair value of goodwill in a reporting unit to the recorded amount of goodwill for that
reporting unit. The implied fair value of goodwill is calculated as the excess of fair value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its
assets and liabilities. Should the fair value of the goodwill so calculated be less than the carrying value, an impairment is recognized. The annual
goodwill impairment tests conducted as of April 30, 2011 and April 30, 2010 indicated that the fair value of each reporting unit was substantially
in excess of its carrying value and, as such, no impairments were deemed to exist. We did not recognize any impairment charges in our
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income in the three and six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.
During the three and six months ended December 31, 2011, we recorded $0 and $79.8 million, respectively, of goodwill in our Lifestyle
segment, associated with the acquisition of MWM Acoustics, LLC. Refer to Note 20 – Acquisition in the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements for more information.
As explained above, effective July 1, 2011, we realigned our business segments. Our reporting units are the same as our reportable segments
with the exception of our Lifestyle segment, which consists of two reporting units, automotive audio and home audio. In connection with this
realignment, we reallocated our goodwill to our new reporting units based on each reporting unit’s relative fair value. We also performed a
goodwill impairment test as of July 1, 2011 using our new reporting units and determined that the fair value of each of our reporting units
exceeded its carrying value therefore no impairments were deemed to exist as of this date. Refer to Note 17 – Business Segment Data in the
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.
Operating Income
Operating income for the three months ended December 31, 2011 was $95.4 million or 8.5 percent of net sales compared to operating income of
$67.8 million, or 7.1 percent of net sales, in the same period in the prior year. The increase in operating income was primarily due to higher gross
profit in the three months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in the prior year, due to leveraging a higher sales volume
across a reduced cost base, partially offset by higher SG&A.
Operating income for the six months ended December 31, 2011 was $169.6 million or 7.8 percent of net sales compared to operating income of
$110.6 million, or 6.2 percent of net sales, in the same period in the prior year. The increase in operating income was primarily due to higher
gross profit in the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in the prior year, due to leveraging a higher sales volume
across a reduced cost base, partially offset by higher SG&A.
Interest Expense, Net
Interest expense, net, was $4.1 million for the three months ended December 31, 2011 compared to $5.8 million of interest expense, net, in the
same period in the prior year. Interest expense, net, for the three months ended December 31, 2011 included interest income of $2.1 million and
interest expense of $6.2 million, of which $1.4 million was cash interest and $4.8 million was noncash interest associated with the amortization
of the debt discount on our $400 million of 1.25 percent convertible senior notes (the “Convertible Senior Notes”) and amortization of debt
issuance costs on the Convertible Senior Notes and our revolving credit facility. Interest expense, net, for the three months ended December 31,
2010 included interest income of $2.0 million and interest expense of $7.8 million, of which $2.3 million was cash interest and $5.5 million was
noncash interest associated with the amortization of the debt discount on the Convertible Senior Notes and amortization of debt issuance costs on
the Convertible Senior Notes and our revolving credit facility.
Interest expense, net, was $9.3 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared to $11.9 million of interest expense, net, in the
same period in the prior year. Interest expense, net, for the six months ended December 31, 2011 included interest income of $4.3 million and
interest expense of $13.6 million, of which $3.9 million was cash interest and $9.7 million was noncash interest associated with the amortization
of the debt discount on the Convertible Senior Notes and amortization of debt issuance costs on the Convertible Senior Notes and our revolving
credit facility. Interest expense, net, for the six months ended December 31, 2010 included interest income of $5.1 million and interest expense
of $17.0 million, of which $4.3 million was cash interest and $12.7 million was noncash interest associated with the amortization of the debt
discount on the Convertible Senior Notes and amortization of debt issuance costs on the Convertible Senior Notes and our revolving credit
facility.
Foreign Exchange Losses, Net
Foreign currency exchange gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of certain foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are included in Foreign exchange losses, net in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income. Effective July 1, 2011, we changed
the functional currency of two of our foreign subsidiaries to the U.S. Dollar to reflect a change in the
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currency such subsidiaries primarily generate and expend cash. In addition, we recognized approximately $1.4 million as Foreign exchange
losses, net in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the three and six months ended December 31, 2011 due to the revaluation of
certain derivative instruments held at these subsidiaries because we did not meet the requisite documentation requirements to attain hedge
accounting treatment. As of January 1, 2012, the documentation was amended to achieve hedge accounting treatment going forward. We also
include gains and losses from forward points on certain derivative foreign currency forward contracts that are excluded from hedge effectiveness
testing in Foreign exchange losses, net in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income. Refer to Note 13 – Derivatives in the Notes to the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.
Miscellaneous, Net
Net miscellaneous expenses consisting primarily of bank charges were $2.0 million for the three months ended December 31, 2011, compared to
$1.9 million in the same period in the prior year and were $3.4 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011, compared to $3.3 million in
the same period in the prior year.
Income Tax Expense, Net
Our provision for income taxes is based on an estimated annual tax rate for the year applied to federal, state and foreign income. Income tax
expense for the three months ended December 31, 2011 was $22.7 million, compared to $6.6 million for the same period in the prior year. The
effective tax rate for the three months ended December 31, 2011 was 27.7 percent, compared to 11.1 percent for the same period in the prior
year. The change in the effective tax rate for the three months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in the prior year was
primarily due to higher income in the United States that is subject to a tax rate greater than our key foreign jurisdictions and the temporary
reinstatement of the research and experimentation tax credit in the second quarter of the prior year, which was retroactively applied back to
January 1, 2010.
Income tax expense for the six months ended December 31, 2011 was $37.6 million, compared to $14.3 million for the same period in the prior
year. The effective tax rate for the six months ended December 31, 2011 was 25.9 percent, compared to 15.1 percent for the same period in the
prior year. The change in the effective tax rate for the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in the prior year was
primarily due to higher income in the United States that is subject to a tax rate greater than our key foreign jurisdictions and the temporary
reinstatement of the research and experimentation tax credit in the second quarter of the prior year, which was retroactively applied back to
January 1, 2010.
As of December 31, 2011, we have gross deferred tax assets of $440.1 million, deferred tax liabilities of $51.0 million and a valuation allowance
against our deferred tax assets of $161.6 million. In assessing the recoverability of our deferred tax assets, we regularly consider whether some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized based on the recognition threshold and measurement of a tax position in accordance
with the FASB Accounting Standard Codification 740, “Income Taxes” (“ASC 740”). The ultimate realization of our deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income of the proper character and source prior to the expiration of our net operating loss and
tax credit carryforward periods. We consider the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, cumulative book income or losses, projected future
taxable income, projected source of taxable income between foreign and domestic, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.
In accordance with ASC 740, the level of historical losses in the U.S. supports our conclusion to maintain a deferred tax valuation allowance
through December 31, 2011. The composition of our U.S. federal, state and foreign deferred tax valuation allowance is $125.7 million, $33.8
million and $2.1 million, respectively. Since the second quarter of fiscal year 2010, we experienced improving earnings trends and have had
cumulative taxable income in the U.S. If such earnings trends continue, and based upon current expectations for future taxable income in the
U.S., it is likely we will realize the benefits of some of our U.S. deferred tax assets currently subject to a valuation allowance, in the near term,
perhaps as early as the third quarter of fiscal year 2012. We would realize this non-cash benefit through a reduction in our deferred tax valuation
allowance, which would be reflected in the tax provision and would benefit net income in the period of such reduction.
As of December 31, 2011, unrecognized tax benefits and the related interest were $32.1 million and $1.0 million, respectively; all but $1.7
million would affect the tax rate if recognized. During the three and six months ended December 31, 2011, we recorded tax reserves on uncertain
tax positions in the amount of $0.7 million and $1.2 million, respectively. During the three and six months ended December 31, 2011, we
recorded additional interest expense on uncertain tax positions of $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively.
Financial Condition
Liquidity and Capital Resources
We primarily finance our working capital requirements through cash generated by operations, borrowings under our revolving credit facility and
trade credit. Cash and cash equivalents were $544.8 million at December 31, 2011 compared to $603.9 million at June 30, 2011. During the six
months ended December 31, 2011, our cash and cash equivalent balance decreased $59.1 million. The decrease in cash was primarily due to
higher purchases of inventories, lower collections of accounts receivable, foreign currency translation, the acquisition of MWM Acoustics,
capital expenditures and the funding of new product development, partially offset by higher net income.
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We will continue to have cash requirements to support seasonal working capital needs, investments in our manufacturing facilities, including
major investments related to manufacturing and research facilities in China, interest and principal payments for our debt service, dividend
payments and restructuring payments. We primarily intend to use cash on hand and cash generated by operations to meet these requirements and
to the extent necessary, borrowings under our revolving credit facility.
We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents of $544.8 million and our short-term investments of $223.8 million at December 31,
2011, together with our expected future operating cash flows, and our availability of $541.3 million under our existing revolving credit facility,
will be sufficient to cover our working capital needs, capital expenditures, debt service, including the repayment of the Convertible Senior Notes
in October 2012, share buy-back program, acquisitions, commitments and quarterly dividends for at least the next 12 months.
Our ability to maintain positive liquidity going forward depends on our ability to continue to generate cash from operations and maintain access
to the financial markets, both of which are subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other market factors
beyond our control. We earn a significant amount of our operating income outside the U.S., the majority of which is deemed to be permanently
reinvested in foreign jurisdictions. For at least the next 12 months, we have sufficient cash in the U.S., availability under our existing revolving
credit facility and forecasted domestic cash flow to sustain our operating activities and cash commitments for investing and financing activities,
such as quarterly dividends and repayment of debt. In addition, we expect existing foreign cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments,
and cash flows from operations to continue to be sufficient to fund our foreign operating activities and cash commitments for investing activities,
such as material capital expenditures, for at least the next 12 months. As of December 31, 2011, Cash and cash equivalents and Short-term
investments of $185.3 million and $10.6 million, respectively, were held in the U.S. and $359.5 million and $213.2 million, respectively, were
held by us in foreign jurisdictions. As of June 30, 2011, Cash and cash equivalents and Short-term investments of $67.1 million and $70.7
million, respectively, were held by us in the U.S. and $536.8 million and $246.6 million, respectively, were held by us in foreign jurisdictions.
Below is a more detailed discussion of our cash flow activities during the six months ended December 31, 2011.
Operating Activities
For the six months ended December 31, 2011, our net cash provided by operating activities was $20.8 million, compared to $90.6 million in the
same period in the prior year. The decrease in operating cash flows compared to the same period in the prior year was primarily due to higher
purchases of inventories in anticipation of future sales, lower collections of accounts receivable, increases in other current assets related to the
surcharge on rare earth minerals, partially offset by higher operating income and lower payments to vendors for accounts payable. At
December 31, 2011, working capital, excluding cash, short-term investments, current portion of long-term debt and short-term debt, was $362.1
million, compared with $141.5 million at June 30, 2011. The increase was primarily due to higher accounts receivable and inventory balances, as
well as, lower accrued liabilities.
Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities was $27.1 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011, compared to $278.8 million in the same
period in the prior year. The decrease in net cash used in investing activities compared to the same period in the prior year was primarily due to
lower net maturities of short-term investments, partially offset by the acquisition of MWM Acoustics and higher capital expenditures. Short-term
investments consist of commercial paper, short-term deposits and government bonds, time deposits, and treasury bills with original maturities of
greater than three months and less than one year. Capital expenditures for the six months ended December 31, 2011 were $52.9 million, in
support of new Infotainment and Lifestyle awards, compared to $34.6 million for the same period in the prior year. Capital spending was also
higher due to expansion of production capacity, increases in information technology related programs and product improvement programs. We
expect that our run rate for capital expenditures will continue to increase during fiscal year 2012.
Financing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities was $21.1 million in the six months ended December 31, 2011, compared to $14.4 million used in financing
activities in the same period in the prior year. The increase in cash used was primarily due to $10.5 million of dividends paid to shareholders.
Our total debt at December 31, 2011 was $400.7 million, or $387.8 million, net of discount, primarily comprised of $400.0 million of the
Convertible Senior Notes which are shown net of a discount of $13.2 million in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31,
2011, due to the accounting guidance which is more fully described in Note 9— Debt, in the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements. Also included in total debt are industrial revenue bonds of $0.3 million, included in the current portion of long-term debt, short-term
debt of $0.2 million and capital leases and other borrowings of $0.5 million.
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Our total debt, including short-term borrowings, at June 30, 2011 was $402.6 million, or $381.0 million, net of discount, and was primarily
comprised of $400.0 million of the Convertible Senior Notes, which are shown net of a discount of $21.6 million in our Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheet at June 30, 2011. Also included in total debt at June 30, 2011 is short-term debt and capital lease obligations of $2.6 million.
New Revolving Credit Facility
On December 1, 2010 Harman and Harman Holding GmbH & Co., KG, our wholly-owned subsidiary (“Harman KG”), entered into a MultiCurrency Credit Agreement with a group of banks, as amended on December 15, 2011 (the “Credit Agreement”) which is more fully described
in our 2011 Annual Report. At December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, we had no borrowings under the Credit Agreement and had outstanding
letters of credit of $8.7 million and $7.3 million, respectively. At December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, unused available credit under the Credit
Agreement was $541.3 million and $542.7 million, respectively. If we experience a significant decline in our operating results, we could violate
our debt covenants and, absent a waiver from our lenders or an amendment to the Credit Agreement, we could be in default under the Credit
Agreement. As a result, our debt under the Credit Agreement could become due, which would have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations. A default under the Credit Agreement could also lead to an event of default under the indenture governing
the Convertible Senior Notes (the “Indenture”), as amended, and accelerate the maturity of the Convertible Senior Notes. As of December 31,
2011, we were in compliance with all the financial covenants of the Credit Agreement. We believe we will be in compliance with these
covenants for at least the next 12 months.
Guarantee and Collateral Agreement
In connection with the Credit Agreement, we and Harman KG entered into a guarantee and collateral agreement (the “Guarantee and Collateral
Agreement”) which provides, among other things, that the obligations under the Credit Agreement are guaranteed by us and each of the
subsidiary guarantors party thereto, and that the obligations generally are secured by liens on substantially all of our assets and certain of our
subsidiary guarantors’ assets.
The term of the Guarantee and Collateral Agreement corresponds with the term of the Credit Agreement, which matures on December 1,
2015. Under the terms of this Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, we have effectively guaranteed the payment of the full amount of borrowings
under the Credit Agreement, including outstanding letters of credit, upon maturity. The potential amount of future payments that we would be
required to pay under the Guarantee and Collateral Agreement is the amount that we have borrowed under the Credit Agreement, including
outstanding letters of credit. At December 31, 2011, we had no borrowings under the Credit Agreement and had outstanding letters of credit of
$8.7 million.
Convertible Senior Notes
We had $400 million of Convertible Senior Notes outstanding at December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011 which are more fully described in Note 9
– Debt in the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. The Convertible Senior Notes are reported in Current portion of longterm debt in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2011, as they are due within the next 12 months.
At December 31, 2011, we were in compliance with all covenants under the Indenture and we believe that we will be in compliance with these
covenants for the remaining term of the Indenture, which is less than 12 months.
Equity
Total shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2011 was $1.469 billion compared with $1.424 billion at June 30, 2011. The increase is primarily
due to increased net income, net unrealized gains on hedging, and share-based compensation, partially offset by unfavorable foreign currency
translation. There were no shares of our common stock repurchased during the six months ended December 31, 2011.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We utilize off-balance sheet arrangements in our operations when we enter into operating leases for land, buildings and equipment in the normal
course of business, which are not included in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. In addition, we had outstanding letters of credit of
$8.7 million at December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, respectively, that were not included in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Business Outlook
Our future outlook may be negatively impacted due to changes in global economic conditions, in particular the European sovereign debt crisis.
This may drive a contraction in consumer discretionary spending. Each quarter we update our estimated cost increases related to the recent
constraints in the supply of rare earth minerals, specifically rare earth neodymium magnets, used in our products. As of December 31, 2011, we
believe that our costs will increase by approximately $88 million in fiscal year 2012 but are not expected to have a negative impact on our
profitability in future years. We are currently investigating alternative design solutions utilizing other materials and also have successfully
negotiated price increases with some of our customers and are still in negotiations with other customers. To date, we believe our actions will be
successful in mitigating approximately $67 million of the impact from this cost increase. In spite of this, we expect our overall year-over-year
profitability to improve.
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Item 3.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are required to include information about potential effects of changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates in our periodic reports
filed with the SEC. Since June 30, 2011, there have been no material changes in the quantitative or qualitative aspects of our market risk profile.
See Item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk included in our 2011 Annual Report.
Interest Rate Sensitivity/Risk
At December 31, 2011, interest on approximately 100 percent of our borrowings was determined on a fixed rate basis. The interest rates on the
balance of our debt are subject to changes in U.S. and European short-term interest rates. To assess exposure to interest rate changes on the
portion of our debt that does not have a fixed-rate, we have performed a sensitivity analysis assuming a hypothetical 100 basis point increase or
decrease in interest rates across all outstanding debt and investments. Our analysis indicates that the effect on net income for the six months
ended December 31, 2011 of such an increase or decrease in interest rates would be approximately $1.4 million.
Foreign Currency Risk
Our significant operations outside the U.S. are in Germany, Hungary, China, the Netherlands, the United Kingdom, Austria, Brazil, France,
Switzerland, Singapore, Mexico, India and Japan. As a result, we are subject to market risks arising from changes in foreign currency exchange
rates, principally the change in the value of the Euro versus the U.S. Dollar. Our subsidiaries purchase products and raw materials in various
currencies. As a result, we may be exposed to cost changes relative to local currencies in the markets to which we sell our products. To mitigate
these transactional risks, we enter into foreign exchange contracts. Foreign currency positions are partially offsetting and are netted against one
another to reduce exposure.
Changes in currency exchange rates, principally the change in the value of the Euro compared to the U.S. Dollar, have an impact on our reported
results when the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries that use their local currency as their functional currency are translated into U.S.
Dollars. Over half of our sales are denominated in Euros. The fluctuation in currency exchange rates, specifically the Euro versus the
U.S. Dollar, had a significant impact on earnings for the six months ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same prior year period due to the
strengthening of the Euro relative to the U.S. Dollar. The average exchange rate for the Euro versus the U.S. Dollar for the six months ended
December 31, 2011 increased 4.2 percent from the same period in the prior year.
To assess exposure to changes in currency exchange rates, we prepared an analysis assuming a hypothetical 10 percent change in currency
exchange rates across all currencies used by our subsidiaries. This analysis indicated that a 10 percent increase in exchange rates would have
increased income before income taxes by approximately $10.0 million and a 10 percent decrease in exchange rates would have decreased income
before income taxes by approximately $10.0 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011.
Competitive conditions in the markets in which we operate may limit our ability to increase prices in the event of adverse changes in currency
exchange rates. For example, certain products made in Europe are sold in the U.S. Sales of these products are affected by the value of the
U.S. Dollar relative to the Euro. Any weakening of the U.S. Dollar could depress the demand for these European manufactured products in the
U.S. and reduce sales. However, due to the multiple currencies involved in our business and the netting effect of various simultaneous
transactions, our foreign currency positions are partially offsetting. In addition, our foreign currency hedging program is designed to limit our
exposure.
Actual gains and losses in the future may differ materially from the hypothetical gains and losses discussed above based on changes in the timing
and amount of interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate movements and our actual exposure and hedging transactions.
Item 4.

Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we have
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated by the SEC
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”)) as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures are effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the
1934 Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms. We note that the design of
any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any
design will succeed in achieving our stated goals under all potential future conditions.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) as promulgated by the
SEC under the 1934 Act) during our most recently completed fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
41

Table of Contents
Item 6.

Exhibits

Exhibit
No.

Exhibit Description

3.1

Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation, filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware
on December 12, 2011 (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 13, 2011
and hereby incorporated by reference).

3.2

By-Laws of Harman International Industries, Incorporated, as amended, dated December 7, 2011 (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 13, 2011 and hereby incorporated by reference).

4.1

First Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of October 21, 2011, between Harman International Industries,
Incorporated, KKR I-H Limited, GS Capital Partners VI Fund L.P., GS Capital Partners VI Parallel, L.P., GS Capital Partners VI
Offshore Fund, L.P., GS Capital Partners VI GmbH & Co. KG, Citibank, N.A. and HSBC USA Inc. (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 25, 2011 and hereby incorporated by reference).

10.1

2012 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Company’s Proxy Statement dated
October 28, 2011).

10.2

First Amendment, dated as of December 15, 2011, to the Multi-Currency Credit Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2010,
among Harman International Industries, Incorporated, Harman Holding GmbH & Co. KG, HSBC Bank USA, National
Association and Unicredit Bank AG, New York Branch, as Syndication Agents; Bank of America, N.A., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
and RBS Citizens, N.A. as Documentation Agents; J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, HSBC Securities (USA), Inc. and Unicredit Bank
AG, New York Branch, as Joint Lead Arrangers; JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent and the financial
institutions party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 21,
2011 and hereby incorporated by reference).

10.3

Letter Agreement, dated September 15, 2011, between Harman International Industries, Incorporated and I.P. Park*.

31.1

Certification of Dinesh Paliwal pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2

Certification of Herbert Parker pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1

Certification of Dinesh Paliwal and Herbert Parker, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS

XBRL Instance Document.*

101.SCH

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema.*

101.CAL

XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase.*

101.LAB

XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase.*

101.PRE

XBRL Presentation Linkbase.*

*

Submitted electronically herewith.

Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following financial information formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language):
(i) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the three and six months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, (ii) Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, (iii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six
months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 and (iv) Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. In accordance with Rule 406T
of Regulation S-T, the XBRL related information in Exhibit 101 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q shall not be deemed to be “filed” for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section, and shall not be part of any
registration statement or other document filed under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except as shall be
expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Harman International Industries, Incorporated has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
Harman International Industries, Incorporated
Date: February 7, 2011

By:

/s/

H ERBERT K. P ARKER

Herbert K. Parker
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT 10.3
HARMAN
400 ATLANTIC STREET
STAMFORD, CONNECTICUT
06901 USA

September 15, 2011
Mr. I.P. Park
Dear I.P.:
On behalf of HARMAN International Industries, Incorporated (“HARMAN”), I am pleased to submit to you an offer for the position of
Chief Technology Officer. In this capacity, you will report directly to me and you will be a member of the HARMAN Executive
Committee. You will be located at our Stamford Connecticut office. This offer provides the following:
Start Date: Your start date will be February 1, 2012 or an earlier date that we may mutually agree to.
Base Salary: Your annual base salary will be $400,000 payable in accordance with our regular corporate payroll schedule.
Bonus: Beginning with fiscal year 2012, you will be eligible to participate in the Management Incentive Compensation (MIC) program
with a target bonus opportunity equal to 75% of your base salary and a 150% maximum. This bonus program is based upon HARMAN’s
achievement of its business plan, as well as your achievement of personal performance goals. For FY2012 only, you will be provided with
a guaranteed bonus amount at target; prorated for time worked. If actual results are greater than target the FY2012 bonus will be calculated
based upon actual results; prorated for time worked. Bonuses after FY2012 will be paid based upon the Plan metrics and achievement of
business and personal performance goals.
Sign on Bonus: You will receive a sign on bonus of $100,000 within 30 days of your start date. If you voluntarily leave the Company
within the first 12 months you will have to repay this amount.
Stock Options : Subject to the approval of the Compensation and Option Committee of the Board of Directors, you will receive a one-time
stock option award of 25,000 shares of Harman common stock under the terms of Harman’s 2002 Stock Option and Incentive Plan
(“Plan”) at a per share exercise price equal to the fair market value as of your start date. The option will vest ratably over three years
commencing on the first anniversary of the grant date, with acceleration and other provisions as provided in the Plan and your option
agreement.
Restricted Stock : Subject to the approval of the Compensation and Option Committee of the Board of Directors, you will receive a onetime award of 5,000 shares of restricted Harman common stock under the Plan, which would vest three years following your start date, if
you are employed by Harman on that date.
Long Term Incentive Program: You will be eligible to participate in HARMAN’s long-term incentive program at a level commensurate
to your position. Grants are generally provided during Q1 of the fiscal year.
Relocation Assistance: This position is based in Stamford, Connecticut and you have committed to moving to Connecticut by August
2012. To this end, you will be eligible for relocation assistance as outlined in the HARMAN Relocation Policy. Before your relocation can
be initiated you will be required to sign a Relocation Payback Agreement. Both the Policy and Payback Agreement will be provided to you
by our relocation vendor upon your acceptance of our offer. Additionally, to assist you during your initial months of employment with
Harman International, the Company will secure and pay the cost of a furnished apartment until from your start date to the end of August,
2012.

Car Allowance: You will receive a car allowance of $1,500 per month paid in accordance with our regular payroll schedule.
Vacation: You will be eligible for accrual of four (4) weeks of vacation annually.
Other Benefits: Additional Benefits as defined by Company policy and governing plan documents currently include medical, dental,
vision, life insurance, short and long-term disability insurance, tuition reimbursement, 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan and all Companypaid holidays. Eligibility to participate in these benefits commences as of your date of hire.
The Company will, in connection with your employment, withhold from any compensation and benefits payable to you all federal, state,
city and other taxes as requested by you or that the Company is required to withhold pursuant to any law or government regulation or
ruling.
HARMAN is not hereby offering you lifetime employment or employment for a fixed or implied period of time. Either you or HARMAN
may terminate your employment at any time, with or without cause or notice. The at-will nature of your employment relationship cannot be
changed except in a written document signed by you and me. Except as otherwise set forth above, upon termination of your employment,
HARMAN will have no further obligations to you under this letter agreement.
Any dispute concerning termination of your employment shall be resolved by final and binding arbitration before a neutral arbitrator. The
arbitrator shall be selected by mutual agreement or in accordance with the procedures of the American Arbitration Association and the
employment arbitration rules of the American Arbitration Association shall apply. Such arbitration shall be conducted in Stamford, CT or
such other location as to which you and Harman agree. The law of Connecticut, without regard to its choice of law rules, shall govern any
such dispute, and the arbitrator shall not have authority to vary or alter the terms of this letter.
You will be expected to sign the Company’s standard form of Invention and Secrecy Agreement on your start date.
Your acceptance of this offer and subsequent employment at HARMAN will be conditional upon HARMAN’s receipt of an acceptable
background screen report which must be completed prior to your start date. Please complete and return the attached background
authorization form and credit check form (if applicable) within the next three business days.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Immigration Reform & Control Act of 1986, all new hires must provide proof of identity and
employment eligibility. You will be required to provide satisfactory documented evidence of your identity and eligibility for employment
in the United States, in accordance with the requirements of U.S. law within 3 business days of your date of hire.
You acknowledge and agree that your acceptance of this offer will violate no agreements or arrangements with other individuals or entities,
or duties to your current employer. Please sign and return the original of this letter. You should retain one copy of this letter for your files.
I look forward to working with you and welcome the contributions you will bring to this outstanding company.
Best regards,
/s/ Dinesh C. Paliwal
Dinesh C. Paliwal
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
HARMAN International

I accept your offer of employment and agree to the provisions stated in this letter. I acknowledge and agree that this letter constitutes the
entire agreement between HARMAN and me and supersedes all prior verbal or written agreements, arrangements or understandings
pertaining to my offer of employment. I understand that I am employed at will and that my employment can be terminated at any time,
with or without cause, at the option of either the Company or me.
I understand that I may be required to submit to a drug and alcohol screen. Refusal to submit to the drug and alcohol screen, or positive test
results for drugs and/or alcohol, will result in the conditional offer of employment being withdrawn.
ACCEPTED AND AGREED:
/s/ I.P. Park
I.P. Park

September 16, 2011
Date

Exhibit 31.1
PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Dinesh C. Paliwal, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Harman International Industries, Incorporated;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 7, 2011

/s/ D INESH C. P ALIWAL
Dinesh C. Paliwal
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Herbert K. Parker, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Harman International Industries, Incorporated;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date February 7, 2011

/s/ H ERBERT K. P ARKER
Herbert K. Parker
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.1
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Harman International Industries, Incorporated (the “Company”) for the period ended
December 31, 2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), each of the undersigned officers of
the Company certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to such officer’s
knowledge:
1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company as of the dates and for the periods expressed in the Report.

Date: February 7, 2011
/s/ D INESH C. P ALIWAL
Name: Dinesh C. Paliwal
Title: Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ H ERBERT K. P ARKER
Name: Herbert K. Parker
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a separate
disclosure document.

